The Bright Star Of f
Central Texas el . -----

OCTOBER 26, 2021
5:00 P.M.

CITY COUNCIL
MEETING AGENDA

P




The Bright Star Of .
Central Texas el .
)

The City Of Harker Heights
305 Miller's Crossing

Harker Heights, Texas 76548
Phone 254/953-5600

Fax 254/953-5614

Mayor
Spencer H. Smith

Mayor Protem
Jennifer McCann

City Council

Michael Blomquist
Jackeline Soriano Fountain
Iynda Nash

Sam Halabi

Iv.

. NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF
\ THE CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS

Notice is hereby given that, beginning at 5:00 p.m. on Tuesday, October 26,
2021, and continuing from day to day thereafter if necessary, the City Council of
the City of Harker Heights, Texas, will hold a meeting in the in the Kitty Young
Council Chamber at 305 Miller’s Crossing, Harker Heights, Texas 76548. The
subjects to be discussed are listed in the following agenda:

MEETING AGENDA

I. Invocation:
IL. Pledge of Allegiance:

I Pledge Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America and to the
Republic for which it stands, one nation under God, indivisible, with liberty and
justice for all.

Honor the Texas Flag. 1 pledge allegiance to thee Texas; one State under God,
one and indivisible.

II1. Roll Call:
Consent Items:

Discuss and consider approving the minutes of the meetings held on October 12,
2021 and take the appropriate action.

Presentations by Citizens:

Citizens who desire to address the Council on any matter may do so during this
item. Please understand that while the Council appreciates hearing your
comments, State law (Texas Gov’t Code §551.042) prohibits them from: (1)
engaging in discussion other than providing a statement of specific factual
information or reciting existing City policy, and (2) taking action other than
directing Staff to place the matter on a future agenda. Please state your name and
address for the record and limit your comments to three minutes.



VIL

Public Hearing:

Conduct a Public Hearing to discuss and consider approving an Ordinance
amending Chapter 11 of the City’s Code of Ordinances, establishing Section 11.1
Comprehensive Plan, and Adopting the 2007 Comprehensive Plan and the 2021
Land Use Plan for the City of Harker Heights, Texas, Pursuant to Chapter 213 of
the Texas Local Government Code; establishing the relationship of the Land Use
Plan and the Development Regulations; Providing for the Amendment of any
existing Comprehensive Plan; and providing for the Amendment of any existing
Land Use Plan; and take the appropriate action. (Planning and Development
Director)

Conduct a Public Hearing to discuss and consider adoption of Land Use
Assumptions and a Capital Improvements Plan relating to possible adoption of
Impact Fees for the 2022 Impact Fee Area, and take the appropriate action.
(Planning and Development Director)

Recess into Executive Session:
Announce a closed meeting for the following purposes:

A) Pursuant to §551.074 of the Texas Government Code to deliberate the
appointment of public officers to the Planning and Zoning Commission and
Building Standards Commission.

B) Pursuant to §551.074 of the Texas Government Code to deliberate the
appointment of public officers to the Board of Adjustment.

Reconvene into Open Session:
Take action, if any, on matters discussed in Executive Session.
Regular Business:

Discuss and consider appointing members to the Parks & Recreation/Tree
Advisory Board; Library Board; Public Safety Commission; Animal Advisory
Committee; Economic Development Corporation; Harker Heights Arts
Commission; and take the appropriate action. (City Secretary)

Discuss and consider approving a Resolution reappointing Jared Bryan as the
City of Harker Heights Representative on the Board of Directors of the Tax
Appraisal Board of Bell County, Texas, and take the appropriate action. (City
Manager)

Discuss and consider approving a Resolution of the City Council of the City of
Harker Heights, Texas, to participate in the Global Opioids Settlement; and take
the appropriate action. (City Manager)

Receive and discuss the City Manager’s Report. (City Manager)



X. Items from Council and Announcements:

1. Council member closing statements.
2 Updates and comments from the Mayor.
XI. Adjournment:

I hereby certify that the above notice of meeting was posted on the bulletin board of City
Hall, City of Harker Heights, Texas, a place readily accessible to the general public at all
times, on the 22™ day of October 2021, by 4:00 p.m., and remained posted for at least 72
continuous hours preceding the scheduled time of said meeting.

JulitBham

Julie Helsham
City Secretary

This facility is wheelchair accessible and accessible parking spaces are available. Requests
for accommodations or interpretive services must be made 48 hours prior to this meeting.
Please contact the City Secretary’s office at 254-953-5600, or FAX 254-953-5614, or email
thelsham@harkerheights.gov for further information.

Pursuant to Chapter 551 of the Government Code the City Council reserves the right to go
into Closed Meeting on any item listed above if deemed necessary.

Note: On occasion the City Council may consider agenda items out of order.



Minutes of the City of Harker Heights Council Meeting held at 5:00 p.m. on Tuesday, October 12, 2021, in
the Kitty Young Council Chamber at the Harker Heights City Hall at 305 Miller’s Crossing, Harker
Heights, Texas 76548:

Roll Call: Spencer H. Smith Mayor
Michael Blomquist Councilmember Place 2
Jackeline Soriano Fountain ~ Councilmember Place 3
Lynda Nash Councilmember Place 4
Sam Halabi Councilmember Place 5
David Mitchell City Manager
Julie Helsham City Secretary

Absent: Jennifer McCann Mayor Pro-tem

Consent Items:

1. Council discussed and considered approving the minutes of the meetings held on September 27, 2021,
and September 28, 2021.

Fountain made the motion to approve the minutes of the meetings held on September 27, 2021 and September 28,
2021. Seconded by Nash. All in favor. Motion approved 4-0.

Presentations by Citizens:

1. Council received and discussed a presentation by John and Vicki Foster, 1908 N. 6" Street, Killeen,
Texas, regarding the permanent foundation requirement for a single manufactured home placed on a
single leased lot in a multi-use district.

2. Phillip Sueoka, 8899 Smith Dairy Road, Belton, Texas, spoke on the issue regarding his Car wash.
Public Hearing:

1. Council conducted a Public Hearing to discuss and consider approving an Ordinance of the City of Harker
Heights, Texas, to change zoning designation from B-3 (Local Business District) to B-4 (Secondary and
Highway Business District) on property described as Meadow Acres, Block 006, Lot Pt 7, 8, (E 14.5 of
N 130’ of 7 & W 85.5 of N 130° Of 8), generally located at 808, 810 & 812 S. Ann Blvd., Harker
Heights, Bell County, Texas. Kristina Ramirez, Planning and Development Director, made the
presentation.

Fountain made the motion to disapprove an Ordinance to change the zoning designation from B-3 (Local
Business District) to B-4 (Secondary and Highway Business District) on property described as Meadow Acres,
Block 006, Lot PT 7, 8, (E 14.5” of N 130° of 7 & W 85.5 of N 130’ of 8), generally located at 808, 810 & 812 S.
Ann Blvd., Harker Heights, Bell County, Texas, based on the following:

The proposed use and rezoning is not compatible with existing uses in the neighborhood due to changes in the
neighborhood in recent years.

Seconded by Halabi. All in favor. Motion to disapprove approved 4-0.



2. Council conducted a Public Hearing to discuss and consider approving an Ordinance of the City of
Harker Heights, Texas, amending 8155.003 of the Harker Heights Code of Ordinances to clarify the
Definition of Board of Adjustment. Kristina Ramirez, Planning and Development Director, made the
presentation.

Blomquist made the motion to approve an Ordinance of the City of Harker Heights, Texas, amending Section
155.003 of the Harker Heights’ Code of Ordinances to clarify the definition of Board of Adjustment, based
upon staff’s recommendation and findings. Seconded by Nash. All in favor. Motion approved 4-0.

Regular Business:

1. Council discussed and considered approving an Appeal of the False Robbery Alarm Service Charge for
Danny East at 211 Evergreen Drive, Harker Heights, Texas. Julie Helsham, City Secretary, made the
presentation. Dwight Bond, 211 Evergreen Drive, Harker Heights, Texas, was present to represent the
request.

Nash made the motion to approve the Appeal to dismiss the False Robbery Alarm Service Charge for Danny East
at 211 Evergreen Drive, Harker Heights, Texas. Seconded by Blomquist. All in favor. Motion approved 4-0.

2. Council received and discussed the revised Lead and Copper Rule, and the Senate Bill 3, Emergency
Preparedness Plan Updates. Mark Hyde, Public Works Director, made the presentation. No action taken.

3. Council received and discussed the City Manager’s Report. David Mitchell, City Manager, made the
presentation. No action taken.

Items from Council and Announcements:
1. Council member closing statements.

Councilmember Blomquist stated that he attended the following events:
e September 29" and 30" — Bell County Health District Selection Board Interviews for the new
Bell County Health District Director at Harker Heights City Hall
e October 2" — Harker Heights Farmer’s Market
October 4" and 5" - Bell County Health District Selection Board Interviews for the new Bell
County Health District Director at Harker Heights City Hall
October 5™ — Harker Heights National Night Out
October 6™ — 8" — Texas Municipal League Annual Conference in Houston, Texas
October 9" — Harker Heights Farmer’s Market
October 9" — Harker Heights Pet Medical Center 20" Anniversary Event
October 11'" — Started the Harker Heights Citizen Police Academy Course

Councilmember Fountain stated that she attended the following events:

October 2" — Association of the United States Army Car Show

October 5" — Harker Heights National Night Out

October 6™ — 8" — Texas Municipal League Annual Conference in Houston, Texas
October 9™ — Congressman Carter Veteran’s Recognition Ceremony

Councilmember Nash stated that she attended most to same events and stated that on Saturday, October
16" the Harker Heights United Methodist Church will be hosting a Food Distribution event from 10:00
a.m. to 12:00 p.m.



2.

Updates and comments from the Mayor.

Mayor Smith stated that he attended the following events:

September 30" — Commanding General 111 Corps and Mayors Engagement Luncheon at Dead Fish Grill,
Lake Belton.

September 30" — I11 Corps and Fort Hood Domestic Violence Prevention Month Proclamation Ceremony.
October 1% — Killeen Temple Metropolitan Planning Organization Leadership meeting at Harker Heights
City Hall with Coryell County Judge Roger Miller and Director Uryan Nelson.

October 2" — Harker Heights Farmer’ Market.

October 2™ — Association of the United States Army Car Show Judge at the Killeen Special Events
Center.

October 5" — Harker Heights National Night Out with City Council and City Staff.

October 9" — Harker Heights Farmer’s Market.

Adjournment:

There being no further business the City of Harker Heights City Council Meeting was adjourned at
6:57 p.m.

CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS:

Spencer H. Smith, Mayor

ATTEST:

Julie Helsham, City Secretary



CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM

/Z21-23 AGENDA ITEM# VI-1

FROM: THE OFFICE OF THE CITY MANAGER DATE: OCTOBER 26, 2021

CONDUCT A PUBLIC HEARING TO DISCUSS AND CONSIDER APPROVING AN
ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 11 OF THE CITY’S CODE OF ORDINANCES,
ESTABLISHING SECTION 11.1 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN, AND ADOPTING THE 2007
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AND THE 2021 LAND USE PLAN FOR THE CITY OF
HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS, PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 213 OF THE TEXAS LOCAL
GOVERNMENT CODE; ESTABLISHING THE RELATIONSHIP OF THE LAND USE
PLAN AND THE DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS; PROVIDING FOR THE
AMENDMENT OF ANY EXISTING COMPREHENSIVE PLAN; AND PROVIDING FOR
THE AMENDMENT OF ANY EXISTING LAND USE PLAN; AND TAKE THE
APPROPRIATE ACTION.

EXPLANATION:

The City of Harker Heights Comprehensive Plan was approved in 2007 and included such
components as the Thoroughfare Plan and Future Land Use Map (FLUM). The Planning and
Zoning Commission (P&Z) is charged with recommending updates on the Comprehensive Plan
to the City Council. The Planning and Development Staff in conjunction with the P&Z began
working towards an update to the Comprehensive Plan in November 2020. This update will
occur in sections and ultimately culminate in an update to the entire Comprehensive Plan.

The P&Z has held seven (7) extensive public workshops and one public hearing to discuss
amendments to the 2007 FLUM. Additionally, a request for public comments on the proposed
2021 FLUM was placed on the City’s P&Z website and in social media beginning on August 10,
2021. The City Council was briefed on the P&Z’s recommendations in Council Workshops on
September 7, 2021 and September 21, 2021, and received comments from the public on September
14, 2021, at the City Council meeting. The attached 2021 Land Use Map, also referred to as the
2021 Future Land Use Map, is a summary of the recommended changes that were a result of the
P&Z and City Council Workshops and the public hearings.

Notices:

This public hearing item was published in the Killeen Daily Herald on Sunday, August 8, 2021.
Additionally, a request for public comments on the proposed FLUM was placed on the City’s
P&Z website and social media beginning on August 10, 2021.

Page 1 of 2



RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommended approval to the Planning & Zoning Commission of an ordinance amending
Chapter 11 of the City’s Code of Ordinances, establishing Section 11.1 Comprehensive Plan, and
adopting the 2007 Comprehensive Plan and the 2021 Land Use Plan for the City of Harker Heights,
Texas pursuant to Chapter 213 of the Texas Local Government Code; establishing the relationship
of the Land Use Plan and the development regulations; providing for the amendment of any
existing Comprehensive Plan; and providing for the amendment of any existing Land Use Plan.

ACTION BY THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION:

During the Planning & Zoning Commission meeting held on August 25, 2021, the Planning and
Zoning Commission voted (6-0) to recommend approval of an ordinance amending Chapter 11
of the City’s Code of Ordinances, establishing Section 11.1 Comprehensive Plan, and adopting
the 2007 Comprehensive Plan and the 2021 Land Use Plan for the City of Harker Heights,
Texas pursuant to Chapter 213 of the Texas Local Government Code; establishing the
relationship of the Land Use Plan and the development regulations; providing for the
amendment of any existing Comprehensive Plan; and providing for the amendment of any
existing Land Use Plan, based on staff’s recommendation and findings.

ACTION BY CITY COUNCIL:

1. Motion to APPROVE/DISAPPROVE an Ordinance amending Chapter 11 of the City’s
Code of Ordinances, establishing Section 11.1 Comprehensive Plan, and adopting the 2007
Comprehensive Plan and the 2021 Land Use Plan for the City of Harker Heights, Texas
pursuant to Chapter 213 of the Texas Local Government Code; establishing the relationship
of the Land Use Plan and the development regulations; providing for the amendment of
any existing Comprehensive Plan; and providing for the amendment of any existing Land
Use Plan, based on staff’s recommendation and findings.

2. Any other action deemed necessary.

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Ordinance
2. Web Link to the Existing Comprehensive Plan
3. 2015 Thoroughfare Plan
4. Current Future Land Use Map
5. 2021 Future Land Use Map

Page 2 of 2



ORDINANCE NO. 2021-

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS
AMENDING CHAPTER 11 OF THE CITY’S CODE OF ORDINANCES,
ESTABLISHING SECTION 11.1 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN, AND ADOPTING
THE 2007 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AND THE 2021 LAND USE PLAN FOR THE
CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 213 OF THE
TEXAS LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE; ESTABLISHING THE RELATIONSHIP
OF THE LAND USE PLAN AND THE DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS;
PROVIDING FOR THE AMENDMENT OF ANY EXISTING COMPREHENSIVE
PLAN; AND PROVIDING FOR THE AMENDMENT OF ANY EXISTING LAND
USE PLAN.

WHEREAS, Chapter 213 of the Texas Local Government Code (LGC) provides
municipal regulatory authority for the purpose of promoting sound development of
municipalities and promoting public health, safety, and welfare; and

WHEREAS, Chapter 213 of the LGC also authorizes municipalities to adopt a
comprehensive plan for the long-range development of a municipality; and

WHEREAS, it is the intent of the City Council of the City of Harker Heights to
encourage sustainable growth, and redevelopment; and

WHEREAS, the City of Harker Heights has been required to address the damage
caused to onsite utilities and its systems and to expend City funds to make repairs on
damaged systems in the yard areas adjacent to City owned polling places; and

WHEREAS, the City Council and the Planning & Zoning Commission engaged the
public at several workshops, meetings and public hearings; and

WHEREAS, the Planning & Zoning Commission reviewed and approved the City of
Harker Heights’ Comprehensive Plan and 2021 Land Use Map at their meeting on August
25, 2021; and

WHEREAS, the meeting at which this Ordinance was passed was open to the public,
and notice of the time, place and purpose of said meeting was given as required by law, all
in strict accordance with the requirements of the Texas Open Meetings Act;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The City Council finds that the recitations set forth above are true.



Section 2. A new Section 11.10 entitled “Comprehensive Plan” is added to the Code of
Ordinances of the City of Harker Heights as follows:

§11.10 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN
(A) Comprehensive Plan Adopted.

(1) The Comprehensive Plan, last revised January 23, 2007, is
hereby adopted by reference as though fully copied herein
and shall apply to all property under the jurisdiction of the
city.

(2) The Comprehensive Plan is adopted for the purposes of
directing the City Council, staff and commissions in
rendering actions and resolutions relating to the planning
and development of the territorial limits of the City.

(B) Land Use Plan Adopted.

(1) The Land Use Plan, last revised September 14, 2021, is
hereby adopted by reference as though fully copied herein
and shall apply to all property under the jurisdiction of the
city.

(2) The Land Use Plan is adopted for the purpose of directing
the City Council, staff, and/or commissions in rendering
actions and resolutions relating to the utilization of all of
the available resources within the City and its Planning
Area for the purpose of developing public and private land
and serving that land with infrastructure systems.

Section 3. This ordinance shall be effective from and after its passage, and the City Clerk
shall publish the caption or title of hereof within ten days as required by law.

PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the City of Harker Heights on
October 26, 2021.

Spencer H. Smith, Mayor

ATTEST:

Juliette Helsham, City Secretary



CHAPTER 11: CITY STANDARDS
Section
City Seal
11.01 City Secretary as custodian of Seal

CITY SEAL

§ 11.01 CITY SECRETARY AS CUSTODIAN OF SEAL.

The City Secretary shall be the custodian of the corporate seal, and when it is affixed to
any instrument, shall be evidence of the authenticity of such instrument.

('60 Code, Ch. 12, Art. 128)

§11.10 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN

(A) Comprehensive Plan Adopted.

(1) The Comprehensive Plan, last revised January 23, 2007, is hereby adopted by
reference as though fully copied herein and shall apply to all property under the
jurisdiction of the city.

(2) The Comprehensive Plan is adopted for the purposes of directing the City
Council, staff and commissions in rendering actions and resolutions relating to
the planning and development of the territorial limits of the City.

(B) Land Use Plan Adopted.

(1) The Land Use Plan, last revised September 14, 2021, is hereby adopted by
reference as though fully copied herein and shall apply to all property under the
jurisdiction of the city.

(2) The Land Use Plan is adopted for the purpose of directing the City Council, staff,
and/or commissions in rendering actions and resolutions relating to the
utilization of all of the available resources within the City and its Planning Area
for the purpose of developing public and private land and serving that land with
infrastructure systems.




Hinrisg) Bz

Comprehensive Plan

On January 23, 2007, the City Council adopted the City of Harker Heights Comprehensive Plan.
The planis intended to provide overall guidance to areas which are vacant as well as to areas which
have already developed. The plan functions to direct the most appropriate land use for all areas of
the city. The planis implemented most directly at the time zonings are made.

The comprehensive plan is a working document utilized by the City of Harker Heights to guide it in
its decision making processes. The comprehensive plan presents relevant historical data,
inventories the current resources of the City, states clearly the City’s goals and objectives for the
future, and provides a framework for obtaining those goals and objectives. In other words, the
comprehensive plan is like a road map which shows where the City is now and where the City would
like to go. Harker Heights’ comprehensive plan was developed with input from citizens, business
leaders, and government agencies. The City of Harker Heights' Comprehensive Plan can be

accessed by clicking the previous link.

Quick Links

Planning and Development
Planning and Zoning

Zoning Board of Adjustments
Capital Improvements Advisory Committee
Business Registration

Zoning

Platting

Applications

Public Infrastructure
Annexations

Code of Ordinances
Comprehensive Plan
Subdivision Ordinance
District 1 Overlay Manual
2021 Calendar

Mobility 2030

My Government Online

GIS Map

Future Land Use Map

https://www.harkerheights.gov/index.php/comprehensive-plan

Privacy - Terms

12


https://www.google.com/intl/en/policies/privacy/
https://www.google.com/intl/en/policies/terms/
https://www.harkerheights.gov/images/PDF/4-pzCompPlan_2007.pdf
https://www.harkerheights.gov/index.php/planning-and-development
https://www.harkerheights.gov/index.php/capital-improvements-advisory-committee
https://www.harkerheights.gov/index.php/business-registration
https://www.harkerheights.gov/index.php/zoning
https://www.harkerheights.gov/index.php/platting
https://www.harkerheights.gov/index.php/applications
https://www.harkerheights.gov/index.php/public-infrastructure
http://www.amlegal.com/codes/client/harker-heights_tx/
https://www.harkerheights.gov/index.php/comprehensive-plan
https://www.harkerheights.gov/index.php/subdivision-ordinance
https://www.harkerheights.gov/images/PDF/DevelopmentOverlayDistrict1Manual121013-LowRes.pdf
https://www.harkerheights.gov/images/PDF/2021_PUBLIC_PLANNING_CALENDAR.pdf
https://www.harkerheights.gov/images/PDF/Mobility_2030_REV102715-LowRes1.pdf
https://www.mygovernmentonline.org/
https://www.harkerheights.gov/index.php/gis-map
https://www.harkerheights.gov/images/PDF/City_FutureLandUseMap_2018.pdf
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
https://www.harkerheights.gov/

Ordinance 2014-10 Adopted 05/27/14 Ordinance 2015-22 Supplemented 10/27/15



5621

5700

2307

15401
14850
15378 ( .
4902 . ’
17019 15487 e I
) ) o 5005 5007 )
S S 2 5 o S 5010
N SV <] o ind o S
EF YR srhe
o
0, T 208 & S 3 5 §
A %7 g) g)
& 308 o ¢ o 04 .
304 @ g8 o <a 6{9 204, 0
S5 g Tu ) 9> 105 14292
Y3 88 0 « G,Q/) . .
67 0,
' lan C¥° s01 60. N JUANITA DR S w
\ittle Nola 61. W NOLAN TRDLR 676 o <0, 20
0
Q 62. N MARY JO ~ o
. o Q
Q 63. NORTHSIDE DR & % %» §
%) 64. W VALLEY RD 14289
Q 65. W STACIE RD = %5 %o
3 66. N ANN BLVD L
N o 67. E NOLAN TRL o, 942
Im © 68. E MARK RD 1146 0
ES) 14241
@x Ss . = 15487 DR
P ~e S o 06) R
o 0 ° 8 § S /2‘0 2,
x 906 409 508 ¥ us % 75. E RUBE RD 5
504 o > (B3
< @ o 405 ¥ 3o 61 BOOKERGIEENSPACE 76. COX %5y
101 2 o 2 0 8 s 77. E ARLO RD
5500 6 N < 78. TURNBO RD %3,
202 S - Py, . 1254 2 14239
I 8 9 3 o JAMEgy g S N 79. E BEE LINE LN 660 So5 %,
5801 YN 8 0 & 8 406 4 S > 80. WATSON LN
2 7 67 IS S . R 638 A e
o § & w g : e o Y uture Lan
5 400 S 8¢ 82. DALE EARNHARDT %39
S 63 w M gg 7 = 83 PLAZACT N
301 207 ¥S 5 . .
R I @ B AR % BNGOTRL i mily Residential
oy, ~ 8 o S Qo . 500 96. DIN 137 Sln Ie Fa I y e
567 553 NTH)’ADR 206 2 o 103"‘ Sy e o 798 (SummifSoccers 86. \I]EIIEEFE%TOE%ON DR 97. WOLVERINE TRL 153
5209 ° S S 508 87 . s
< 539 217 13 203 20 & o < N . 98. LOBO CIR 156
g 537 5 2 203 9 g 5 ~ @gm ERN HILLS DR . 183 P
T g 17 8 g 64 201 8 g . §8 8: gg (E;'gSRTONADo RD 99. CORAL DR e . .
0 % . -
o ] . 6200 § 01 8 133 125 12 4 66 & w07 5 o > 90. CHEETAH TRL 202 215 Mlxed ReSldentIaI
2 ©o 5 .
% 8§ §38s5 ., om0 552 s g 410 g4 S8 1o s 93 5. o Y e S 91. PAN AMERICAN DR 24 287
5904 1307 ¢ &g § 608 o @ 402 121 111 08 ~ & o ~ Y LN YR ¥ o 7 92. MORGAN ST 246 253
1300 goos 3 302 o ) . T3 Y Se Y& e Q ' NTIER TRL 271 .
1303 6204 © n &5 o 390 § o S Ss S I NS » & < 93. FRO 401 . .
wos 1302 o200 % © 98§ m Vg we TR T T ¥ e TS s § g § 18 94. CLORE RD & 2w i Residentia
o RS Y] V236 © ) v 292 Medlum enSI y
- 1307 1304 ¢ 6202 1305 13 ug W0 21 - & oo T 119 2o 8 § S w N 5], (@ MZ IS é’-l\l 3015 1580
(] 130, 2 00 N oo 120 “IN > Ny e I N 314 32
B ° 6002 ¥ 6103 6109 909 11t 108 3 NI o2 » 128 & 10 04 102 Ty § o0 Yy § s © Noog 521 5 349
o ~ 109 45, N8 & - 205 o NI ~ ~ 346 .
% B Y o 304 2 202 g e 76 &b Y S o 347 1765 . .
6005 @ v © & 905 112 S S © 116 & 217 © ~ &5 . Ia
g o & 05 030 s O 301 o TS e 104 N § o & g 1800 HI h DenSIty eSI en
B 98, P 5§ o, ¥8 I3 Vs AN 5 5 te11 1616 g
6010 © & 31w, oz 40, & © " g TS S KA HE)/ ’ s b 519 5 = 28
N 106 404 1 ® Y o bt 83 m 206 & g
B T LT R us RO > 5% Hom K
5 S & 3 . r
1405 837 502 505 07 aog N ° - . B o E Ver, 601 7 e17 gy 699 - MObIIe (@) e Pa
107 85 5 8 Y g g g A 210 2§ 2 ERANS M, § 5 1407 1551 61
CT 29. MOODY CIR g3 % @ 39 504 - Y8 0. &@Iﬁ ~ 8 2. 858 77 516 @ 524 EMOR[AL N 1800
1. BYBEE 30. BONNIE DR MO e s CEE 50 7 mak s Ty 07 (erm Feld 560 BLvp X 1505
2. S ANN BLVD . FOREST CIR 141 07 ° Fe v - S « 125 s01 602 1507 1509 & .
3. W BEE LINE LN %% S JUANITA DR 13 %20 © 33 %07 § o 9§ 565 § " T8 g S 68 618 e 1M u 108 I | “ Nn rCIaI
. g g
4. HARLEY DR 33 W RUBY RD 1501 oy §In 210 202 v g SN s 10, vN g 5 TN 305 628 1212 S CO e
5. EVERGREEN R%R 34. W BOB WHITE LN 1503 g3 V& e Y8 3 oS ° 8 vy o T g 305 N é\OVV o ¢ 137 DINGOONCCIZFTR
. . 5 60 Y § 9o N N~ % ~ ,q 1809 VlNS
6. E WOODLAW 35. E BOB WHITE LN 1505 821 o 211 20 Y 38 S Jo 79 29 g R, 138.
: . 123 S S % Y Fg . 59 ® N 0 1707 >~ TRL .
TONWOOD DR R o & 1 55 o 7y o1 > S 715 139, FAWN . I
573. 88ELOT TRL 36. S ROY REYNOLDS D 1507 & 214 & 3 06 w07, 100 S 9§ So o B 305 ety 2 a g, 2 Qo\ O,Lp 4100 105 0% Q 140. COTTONMOUTH DR 149, BEQ% -(I-jITFIQ_ 1190 nufacturlng N US rla
: B g a7 20 me & Ve T e Ny « © ¥¢ g S s ek " NOLA RUTH BLVD 150 PU a
9. E BRIARWOOD LN 815 215 L/v I8 v ~ 403 A\ 416 ) v ~ % 141. N . 4
. 4 LY 414 251 K DR 100
10. HIGHLAND OAKS DR 5000 1601 w7 % o8 Y 8y m e Heont 200 ¥ 85 o 9 200 L\ 142. DOROTHY LN 151 CORK OAK DR oL
o Eoss g5 en 72 [Heer o T 07 prker voe g 704 o N 143, MILDRED LEE LN 152. IRON J
g w05 &S 1605 S w 34 $ 3 l}.m@ 723 7 S 325 S § &’( 144. TANGLEWOOI% CT 153. ?Eggﬁ Sg 904
Vd o X 210 1 ) ~ 6 ESWICK C 154 rnl I Ien
© Jo g © 412 84 710 C 145. PR :
-~ 5813 805 g« § © 725 707 @ T Q DR ADD CT
02 & S S 155.
2B 8 e 5815 836 10 5% o 8§ o " § M e g M %02 00, " [Eastenn] s @ & 128, OAKLTDREARILRUN RD 156. PORT DR
3 I sor sog 5710 g1 210 808 04 & 35 7 L, 115 740 418 419 506 04 329 = QO %ig EFQILCJ;EWOOD CIR 157. SUN MEADOWS DR
S 1703 211 805 495 S 3 11 N leB 329 N . .
8 e 5819 5830 535 w5 w5 810 806 5§ s © - a7 21 o & - £ & 201 158 ENIEL?( '[EAIL o
NI 201 805 RS BN 750 N 88 ~ 159. RA
N I\ @ ~ N N 701 200 .
e e TR s M ey TRy S 160 ZNEANDELOR
[SEENY 816 =~
5823 ¥ o2 , 8 &4 809 § 1 B4 e Voar g, g 333 00 e 750 1204 161. OLD NOLANVIL
6 5827 1805 621 I o & Q § L O 2 :> 5 éa o Y IS o 1810
vNEE o & J o © 17 o & S ® & v @)
36 o §o V.88 8o . 75 8 ¢ YiMCASEES Y & O = s 260 & IR A 08 400 ~ 8l & 1210 Lo0s I g N
~ N oo -~ ~
w0 V8 g IV F g o Ferk encl Peel ~ ~ I o & 8 o Y i oo 403 611 o 575 400 1812 130 130 ~ Y e
11. REDWOOD DR o e e g J9 §s > 1922 o, R v 83 Yoam e Y PRe e 134 1wy, 0 § 9 o
. o
12. PIN OAK DR ow Yy sy T8 T, S8 104 S, 1 o0, §eo° &3 ¥ S 581 SWicy o Y 1250
. 5 609 Vo o S ~ 58 S 906 9 ¥ g o ¥ 404 611 Iy ol N D 2 ° 1 114 o
13 SPANISH OAKS DR L &7 F sa T g Y WX s % ¥ e sy o 5 . “ RS 10 S S S 14
. ~ 5 g 10 9. 40 ] 8, %
14. W BRIARWOOD LN o 9 57 603 o g 702 ) <§ § R Lg«o .§ CLKA//NGB”?D 2} 910 1o %9 6 gg5 903 0 %02 v :,‘V\ ¥ ¥ s00 § © o a @ 6‘)% ° & 83 g CiR g 'Qf\? % % 5 " 140 10, 10 - 5” 112
15. SHELBY LN ag 226 G 5 @B 608 YIS e 4 o 1102 w0 80 215 a0 09 7 6 %5 g5, on %5 S " 8 8 g o° @ g0 690 N 680 g2 %" g8 o o s 110
o G © 232G & ® (S~ S & v © 692 689 5 S 6 &
501 @ @ 8 3% 01 400 o & S 3 8 <3 915 o11 510 @ g 14 s 00 106
o 108 @ Z 516 S o 07 3 & 32 . S § o ~ § 5 @eeddcemmall 174 N g ° © o 615 g, o1 %8 s, § ) ??9 o, 3 g 142 5 § 88, g . © & s01 501 1607 157 1100
2% 309 |, 107 B 512 w1 305 Ve & 908 o S Ferk E ¢ Y &= 85 93 o ° w0 ® gm0 % TS558 " % %2001 605 ey 60g %03 T 0 e 503 161
> 310 ) 517 302 303 1 5§ & 91 9 1 oS 8 78 > 502 1208
3, & 309 07 ¢ 513 300 600 92 604 301 Yids © g g s ARD//VAL 2226 S s o 0 o9 9212 915 601 840 738 7% 7‘5\@‘" 0 7 g 83 .0 & o %0ae0s 607 g 608 c00 228 504 502 404 100 S NVILLEE
N ~ 3,
007 © o 307 306 10 305 % ‘% \)‘\, S, 207 § O N V204 1607 S § o é’o LN ! vE § § v ° 919 eos CO/"’PERHE 860 741 760 5 s 7§ 785 ~ 608 607 &2 611 612 °0° 607602 601 601 506 %05 § 407 ) 2
= 217 S g ~ v g 610 AD 870 = 759 = =) v ¥
213 223 305 302 303 = s g 05 7 o 8 an S ) V886 o n o, 82 5 @ A o 575 511 . c . 2 930 S 70 _e% B & S8 707612 813 919 6o 600 605008 @ 159 155 by & 10 %00 ,
304 302 o 218 & & 215 @ 3 6 1605 160 NEe S 1200 S S > 301 v 870 88 mo 2 9 g 789 606 101
212 303 2 202 210 214 D g0 160z N - YN o 416 523 0 601 Ley) 859 g % 67, ) 615 604 605 4 404 403
211 302 101 e B 216 213 g o 1603 g o § & o N & g 227 575 52 [ R 2o 880 . - 143 6. 0 227 607 602 602 S 153 s 40
210 e 5 212 @ 13 1606 ~ & o AN~ N S - 300 - 819 5 98 S 16 704 609 S o 0 400
04 8 S * S 4 890 o 1169 20 610 SIS 0 4 2
207 s 209 e B =7 2 a1 208 2u Y& 613 44, 07 3605 1505 ¥ & Yizs& . "% o 8 S w T E e 87 7 a, 524 630 B o w0 0 ass 886 1101 § ~ 1149 851 a0 618 25 0 700 701 S0 609 606 607 604 ,3,& ?F oy % 08 407, . 4 s 4 01 5 7%
205 06 207 210 209 208 27 105 g % 206 209 S 1 ° § 8 05 § 88§85 “x 8 a6 TV o o ® §e © 8 §8 , 91 z 850 900 59 890  ggg 5§ 617 708 704 703704 705 814 1% 610 6pg 606 vooe s a2 4y % § % 05 13 % @
207 S, 204 207 83 o YNRYISRFT & - NS S 2 841 901 8 © o a8 141 S 4 805 N D © 08 2 ®
203 205 208 208 101 07 ¢ o, V202 S <8 5 § & N S ¥ 465 ®) % 598 § 14 S 618 617 226 & 75 40 29
204 2, © 102 ) 30 3 & & S o 2 581 777 40 1 902 SIS g K3 5 61, 9 10 < 9
206 205 108 & @ 207 205 §§ o 17 S o 172 45 09 32 3 8 ¥ e v — 99 1 910 AR S & g g R 709 700 ~ 502 09 3
201 202 203 204 903 236 r§, e [N s 202 203 N & 201 01 1702 o1 VS S o1 & fé° o 304 0 © . & § IS é\’,: N 86 S5 455 o1 775 E 869 903 g4 906 901 2 o ~ g 5: §D 885 § ] 07 Iy é:%gg 10 201 220 - o1 158 154 504 503 S‘j 12 413 ‘)919 44 45
201 ~ o= 604 S o 1704 L 52 Yo ow 1421 725 911 gy ~ 809 o N & O 50, 501 4
202 29 202 S 1704 2 ¥ 46 kS ¥y 905 ~ g 889 8 NN o> 713 © ) 60 5 & 16 2 41
3 13 4 1 201 203 201 S8 s - Y 3 SN 365 & 841 gy 907 910 o 0 & 12 . A, 1 $ 2, 1206
Tome 1 200 &8 8, v 9 105 1707 % 2" Y, & 89 < o11 1124 8o 901 8 sz U 1513 705 1605 705 4 602 603 g v & o . 1104
We o 3105 100 $ ¢ g ? Sw ¥ 1715 1709 %, 06 401 415 ~ 822 921 921 950 o3 1 S 900 o1 813 806 2 708 12 205 Ly 09 oo & 603 § opV NolanvilleJES] «, ©
899 S S S 109 8 1711 1710 5w 439 \,5? 602 923 2 S A g 81: 224 o o CHRISTN ¢, o % 3
101 1o g 2 9 608 107 & o & 1709 55 <// 704 716 150? 900 930 926 925 11?0 R 05 o8 o e IS © < = 1510 1603 1606‘ o u \?90 1217 607 " S
- g S 1713 107 1711 Q ~ 425 @ 931 925 ~ 495 ¥ g = 605 S
875 1021 . 8§ ws ©° 8 § 810 1713 \ &l(%a g ND/A/VO ijﬁ %0 w%\% S 940 %0 931 1us e %07 k) % ‘o %o s 811 & » § “;n?i? o 25 702 221 02 2008 1807 Sm
09 w 1801 5 ~ N S 905 812 O v 80, & 2004
825 607 F 6 103 209 P MO’*“WKD,; S o RICE 1700 AKSD Q \/*\ o0 700 R % % E B §° 07 o 936 935 1116 0 g = & . o ¥ go1 802 ~229 0 80z 701 706 Feveac, 152 217. SILVER CREEK DR S ,§ ©
703 10 83 > & 4% N 940 8§ o 910 1304 $ o 813 ol LN . IS
701 660 101 213 v 1805 & A 1802 ¥ Q‘k »\Qy\ s o . ez E 218 ° 941 114 38§ e8 ou K (,:}15‘ A 806 L o 1616 gy 803 %0 710 1705 210 218. BEAVER TRL 005 o ®
208 &34 1508 5§ 1804 209 COMANCHE DR 610 Q,+ Q?)\ 8 o 23°% 8 %, o21 046 112 7 112, o 912 % o 20’ % %, o 5% s &8 00 & a4 800 712 170, s 700 219. PAINTBRUSgODPR )
661 625 Ve 201 NS 5. & 2o &) 110 > g o 1605 "~ 807 Theg g L o 777
Ce 2o wmow gl gy o 48 FORESTHLLSDR A g w8 g S oo =0 g . T M m g, g owmogpy g g Fae B s e s 530 THOMAS T g §3 o )
602 ~ : = S ~ 1108 X ~ N g 8 4 . 110.
/VTQAL So 2905 47. WICHITA ST ja\ S cRe s = 951 g 3 20, 58 s o &, 2 3 1612 5 808 806 | gog 1713 712 06 222. WIND RIDGE DR 5
702 TEXAS w01 308 100 ¥ 1904 N 1905 48, HELl\L/JISTI\:/eVIZAY "?y‘\’ 2 92 x 5 < 926 vy B0l g 33 %o 0y 3 2 10 o 3 1003 8 ROSEC/;; LU 223. TRAIL CREST DR
5 303 104 S L g 31 352 A 821 %) ] 0 S '
EXPY w a0 100 104 AR 191)7 %08 gg EE%HTS DR C,?)\ 500 20 e Z PO%UJ 9:200 158 1104 “; ¥ g g o od48 & 3 ) 5 g %0z 000 212 1905 gy 2006 E w0 & § 224. ELHIXESDIODII\:]NDAI?Y DR NO/an
. — a o
03 101 47 108 o 51. COMMERCIAL DR 2o < 1710 res '§ ~ 13 1107 - g 8¢ " g DAR 04 - @ 5 0, § o s\ 1907 5 § S o oz ; %%g VOLLEY LN Cf'eek
1 ' 28 S < 121 S 5 o0 gy e S 8 .
Cg, 201 5 o 40 a0 90 = 1809 LR RO J Ig & s ) 2 g o 53 4~ g o ks LN g MOUNTAI;VIEWCT 905 \/@06 4% 1200 TS g fs’ s o Jg 227. MOUN-I.-AIN LADURREL PR
» /\/7-,?/4 200 07 01 201 201 S . 8 s03 83 e S 0 ® 8 & > % 3d, SRl Mgy o Y o 23 228. MAN O' WAR R
850 ? 4 TE)( 40 dom ¥ g 1805 70 & ER 2139 Q 1708 ° 8 % K 8 100 & 225 i SICY g8 229. TANGLEWOOD D
As E)(Py 200 300 »® g LY 8 LA [T “ 903 1751 % s %% B 147 Q 15 g 1805 3 1015 108 > 801
62, 18 o R g g 1509 2 2 1901 100 1926 <
%0 0 48 %S\V\G §go 7 5 % os § ,° 138" . L ‘7*’:% u’\;\} ® 04 105 g 156 QO & 1807 214 R o o S =
400 301 ©o o « > N4 <) & (0 © ~ [CR
190 R0 S¢ 85 514 o S 710 N Y 01 $ Q S R
e N ° 8 Yo © 1922 1401
600 g w LER C s o 8 o TS g o8 %02 c0 703 149 o R 999 % % 101 150 Q)Q. \><'o 1511 5 5 1908 g © 213 19 Qo1
2025 S S D 0 Ly o ® & i Im;
é) 130 150 160 N\\\— . v 97 602 ® @I 190 W 1oL o © S s ':‘QD 146 § \2\?@ N 18, 216 '% 1918 1905 Lr
A7 507 96 ~ ~ v N N 1517 3 3 2
¥ o 110 140 514 603 N S 1600 1516 S R 003
K g S~ 15 OQ 2020 200 120 100 120 95 st g ‘6 1906 137 605 X 702 § /MBE/?L/ 1101 2 160 1515 ¥ g9 o «iﬁg‘fﬁ o 122 1901 DEEQ\ 210. NACON'?M;SI\_N DR
~ ~ Q2] =]
Vg < N, 1518 SS9 e > 11. HAY ME
§ o . ¥og 5o 325 m 805~ 5 g 604 W § ton1 LZ:S' o ED/? 2475 1601 ~ § s 1220 %12 SUTTON PLACE TRL
a1 Y& g A AN 2010 100 Cerl 88 S 3 o - 2000 NSS8s » 1306 1502 1614 Y& . IDGE TRL
g v § s 300 335 Perlk ] 100 605 & ) SS98S§3e2., 1402 184 W 213. HIGHR
us & - 20; an P 55 o0 L0, 3 5 2000 TYI85 9 1008 1400 o 1502 Co TR 3 214. MEGAN CT
¥ . & & ° . 2105 S 8 o S 2030 a4 N8 g s 521 con 150 § 2005 200 2 93 g ;,:3:? s 1408 & 1515 CE S 1505 1408 215. ROCKY MOUNTAIN TRL
VY& s o § 85 8§ 20 s T T8 g o § o0 o 51 49 8 5 601@ o . mopn 8 205, 2002 2002 I -~ o . 3 oy T 1600 216. MCGINNIS CT
~ A :
° N ‘§ S o § 16 o 0 N 3 § ©w ~ § 5 V& 260 400 403 § ) 514 7 o 520 § € v, 2005 2004 2003 Vg g 5’} s ., 2 1500 ‘é 150 1510 . 1608 1544 176. COYOTE CIR
o) ~ QY .
234 ¥ o2 V48 o, S 858 g oy o0 °F s V8 ar s 2 7 e N monR R 2010 05 2007 2005 2003 T8 o 1804 . 452 n 5 2 T 2 g o 177. YUMA TRL 19
g N NI S TS5 g g g § S o 408 307 ” § a5 P & 513 516 518 200 124 N 2009 o 2006 2005 1506 3 1512 Ca A 178. AZTEC TRCE
0¥ § o S g9 § S 5 . . g mw;\a, S 2101 509 © 2018 2015 © 2010 2008 5000 - 2012 o100 8 2005 2007 " 151 177 . S 1526 179. BOBCAT CIR Q
~ ~ © ~ S (2} .
g " VY e 88 g7 79 § ¢ 8 50 & § g 205 20 20 420 d08 308 ” 8 so1 Foom2sis gy < 2009 73 N7 8 2014 2013 2009 Pig TR, § 5 v 1514 2 P g7 % - 517 180. CATKINS LN ch
« ~ 5 514 127 > oo B S & o 2 323 ~ ) E RD
© o o [SY- 2011 = © o A3 = Y RIDG ~
g8 3 . 8 S8 2223 $8 ¢ s s . hat o 209 05 230 - 415 302 403 s02 128 % 8 &, 2014 =~ 712 176 1000 838858 o W, R 186 1600 R § g 103 %g% IB{ENRIETTA AVE L
N 3 - = g =] 2o = ~ 309 — © Yy S w 1108 / ~ © .
& ) — « © S o S 53 601 1602 ~ 3091
17 BLACKFOOT DR 18 545 § 102 m e 8y TR g g 240 200 22 g mo g g 160 D B . T Yok, R | 1604 199 OSAGETRCE &
> N 2125 116 = & IN s m @ 715 2 = 184
a7 17. BLA & 104 g - So I o 00 o ® 2103 8, 519 5009 7 I 2020 =z D 1602 1608 1608 . S
CT . o S S o "8 H 2., % ¢ o 2106 7 2021 > D 1413 185. PUEBLO TRCE O 3110
»®  18. CAROLINE S s 6 .o 107 « 5 ¥ & sa & an > 3 2107 2017 9 & Oc 1604 1610 1608 185 . 3113
B 19. WICKIUP TRL 8 S 22 2® e o g 8 S 88 220 08 501 %, 5 s 208 516 na 17 2050 s . WH/TTEN Q140 189 1609 o et 186. DAKOTA TRCE & )
20. ILLINOIS DR 242 3056 »® 25 18 S 5 17 309 310 400 05 goo . a6 5 105 0 o111 2109 LT N g DR Q o 1611 w12 <
5204 o1 g 3 19 200 20 2202 02 no 407 % 403 m? 102 210z 606 700 180 g 181 é/) v:; 1418 o 1616 w6t IN CA DR 1713 § 8205
2k X a o 4 %. Qf o 0 I 5 o 3206
205 & 2 2 <] @ 516 525 8 ~ N 209 20, 2129 21620
5206 o % 5 S ® 2 @ e B 308 8 16 ] 2201 S . 224 404 406 4y S % 404 > o & “l0g § . 7% s 20336 3 2028 § 1408 B lo18 HOPI TRL 1717 %gg Még@ -[IT\IL 3225
5300 =3 % o 2 % 406 408 I > 210, ° S o 8 182 © 202g .
2 e % S 220 NSO 403 e o2 6 S F 5 5 S« 202 (O] 140, 1416 < 1700 7Z TRL
2 VIR Y 410 401 > o 2108 > 5§20 S S8 o 120 N 1703 1705 189. NATCHE
5302 3023 13 2017 P 300 8 2207 408 526 P 3 &N . < 2039 IS & = g 1614
20 ) Q3 2w s 3 S N § 8 100 § o v g 121 = 1419 - 1702 190. TEJAS TRL 3460
2, 8 X ey 400 2110 S S o ~ 1705 . 3381
5304 Vo 24 »e % EYR 00 ey o a7 aa g, 2 > q»”(ﬂef-‘ Fo an e 10188 ° g ¥ § 7 95 o 204 183 5 10 190 aer 1os 8 191. MOHICAN TRL =
S 402 2120 IS S o o & S 1414 = 1615 1
5306 26 26 b2 '?“ 2208 1 & 41 412 217 " 0 VS Y 103 su4 © 019 ° o34 = o 0 203 S 5 1418 o RS
23 =< < 400 418 N < RS S o o g S « 2042 Y & 1400 82 1708 S E
5308 2, - % 37 % 27 g 2 s01 0o 501 % q}f&\x & 211, 5.8 e § g 2 3123 s 3 S o 735 ¢ . 203 & I 5 S § g s g g o 203. PONTOTOCLTRC
e §F S o 3 7 5 o 53 5 g 1705
> - % 5 11 5 e P S S 5 & e 8 S o g & g S8 a S 1404 B 7 " 1712 = o I 204. SHASTA TR
5403 17 ) 9 CAr, 01 s & D fig v k) © >y 8 s g T g o988 o S ~ 1416 e 3 - I ' 3509
5401 402 o @ o % . % % el A o 418 § 500 o7 400 2202 2207 . % Sy g 92; B §§ 9 S § = Ln“' 8 ~ g s {\70 ¥ Y S 191 g ° 1o 5 3 S & 203 7 1700 g 205. ¥ESOC’?1RTRCE
% v 6401 2 o) S S @ ] ~ 3 3 5 i S & S ¥ 400 S > L 8 N o 206
2 % % > . 2312 402 500 503 504 S S 8 ¥ 9 3 o ~ ~ 1405 1 1413 N 1721 1601 ~ N8 .
o 5400 Tg o 3 0% % \’261 s 7”501% e % & 404 o2 0% 507 m\/b‘: O s, g s B g 19 1805 1503 W s 1722 188 1s00 ) ook EBLI\JII-I%'RRLCE b
@ =} o o 2 %) 2 ~ P ) ~ N & o I
2 5503 3 E V7 7 < 125 40 2 S o S~ & & 190, 1507 G 1801 1673 1704 4 208. 12680
o o o 23 w00 B 2 5 e kS % 502 g\ 506 T s > YV SSes , 78 §e O ; o4 905 1902 193 19, T 5 1802 g g o, 1058 © 803 o & 209. SHOSHONI TRL “
o R > B 510 4 5 3 o 908 19 g 8 §F v 183 8 S 8>,
s % 2 o) z = . 2 5 o11 5 & 18 k2 g 3 & & < 0
87 e 5008 103 107 < S ° %50 504 s08 N . w08 131 g0s o 2 s . B 197 1909 909 1004 187 © ] RN wog s 11481 11301 10578
El \) A = o 1906
S 105 © T o 54 > © LN 906 O 909 S o §8& o %88 1974 1975 1924 2 90, g z 1815 g @~ 1806 10903
£ % seo1 5603 o ¢ 2 = e ¢ & A 5 58y - I 1300 1419 00 s - o 2 8 $ 11505
5 6501 101 o 2 % ) o P S ® 660 904 S S w07 ° o? S e S & 9000 119 195 1924 192g 208 05 § § 3 o (.;:; 187, 1809 & 11500 3700
5501 » 5 ° N N S - 905 <2 o g 1507 ~
5602 o m * ’x) '\\g’\, iy 6\,% ° 66\ 680 sz = 03 S § ° > é’? 002 2003 2001 1032 § Sy ¥ tont Lr?o z 205 1820 r§ 3701 %2
= a
5503 5600 ® . 108 & 55 & o0 < ° S S e & o Fankerd 2005 29, 20 2009 T S3ds 1420 5 g0 A ~ A - 4]0
5603 st 2 B 2401 m % Unflem ER PV & 5 s 8 2 3 ° T 5 % D U & 76 g
sor %% o % S Perk 12 107 42 o S N 106 <u > o01 S § 9 Helghis 2010 W g &% 001 U3 TR o 780 "2 g 11130 10531
Ed 288" 2403 2% MS] MO g < © «° e @ © N g 201 2 196 2o & c = o 200, o L g m
9 2 2% 82 @ 6414 Crove o % = S £O 700 S 932 & 2014 3 011 06 % T 2001 29 2 1818 o 18972 g 12410
*° ss00 s 2% o2 2405 e w1 % s o & ¢ N % 905 2017 20 w0 g 204 3 g5 13576 13436 - 12316 12200
5511 " S 6 i 2 % % 1= 2407 115§ o, ° % } 518 o Pig © § s © & T‘SO 2 205 2018 203 ’ 2011 1504 2100 % 206 g 2007 1833 12240 RUMMEL 3952 3895 10465
3 120 N by S & % 3 1 &) 20 12552 o
5513 3G D 2 g° < 2409 < L) 93 S 202, 14 - 07 20
% % 2 5901 3 s %% 2411 202 201 5 2 36&3 B> 523 e‘%’; g S "“6« Q’\}% 2% & 800 g 2 2025 2 ) 2022 2018 ré,a@ 209 ERS g § 2 2210 N § = e 5 4 RD
6301 @ 2% © 2 o, @ 0> o & N 55 5, % 026 026 ~ ~
5901 . 22 B 2413 203 ° QR 28 1 s22 53 & o 2% ° &, 029 2026 § éc 1015 3973
o 6300 D o0 5902 o0 @ 5% 206 12 39 P P e LS 2 N 850 Q 100z 2030 2024 Yo § 12590 (@) 11141 3
2% R R e . 5 et 02 Y 9% w > 104 S 210 0% 030 SFgR = 1 12362 13325 e 9 S soss o
o = 210 °© % ¥ o > ~ ~
° 6302 52237 5908 4y 2;1119 212 . % ° . T B s Cr \AOR 5 © 3% 7:1 e & 2 980 20 o 03¢ 0z " 2301 286 5 4001
PR3 s % A3 EE 2 PO 02701 N < 90 S 8 o g8 < 4299
5909 21 216 = A e 2° < o % © 703 704 703 > © ~ 88 o NS S o 2300 13010
5012 2 218 5% O 527 v 501 @ T4 T s g 723 S S AV A [EMP22,10] ™ 4243
5911 915 <, e % 0 . o 20 705 ~ o ~ ~ 1901 [a g
5913 ° 3 2z %o % S W0 s 00 ° g5 8 708 707 708 77 T R Tl ppg Q s o R @mjﬂv 2303 12201 4354 Q 4201
6403 2425 22 g °© 2 11 o 325 20 501 e 727 2 - s § 122 t
e 5915 6001 y < 427 nh ) i e B H g OV g4 47 s02 @mm T & - o Pegls 2302 13600 13470 fg
% > 2 9 g0l 1000 0 4300
’ soon 6003 60036’ S aor @ 2429 ELRT . 5 & ° 330 329 205 201 103 406 409 400 Park g EE 803 K o " & P e 2308 2310 13950 12631 99999 o
S & o, e © KR TS 202 S 4 2310 4388 4201
LS 6410 % = A & 2 101 40q S S 1431 12661 12560 286 T
°8y 6106 2431 b " - < @ O N »? 9 807 8 Z T 1349 2314 1761 O]
2% s & F o 2433 e 2 .% °% 103 g 52 100 49 406 g ¢ THOMAS DRIVE 5 4400 4360 4255 4280 I
2 @ S 2 2 - o BB © B 2 43 2 %, 44 2 102 412 29 g 5 9 su 3035 t 1629 2315 1825 1827 1829 s 4401 g
o2} =} =l ~ o < ~
e RACN & - % % ?12 . % % 2 2, . % 2 00 g5 41258 - W74 o E KNIGHTS WAY (E FM 2410) 12965 ! x
6415 ° 2 @ 4 301 @ 423 3 817 5 & S
» Acofn s 2% w01 %" A 303 Ty s R 3045 S = o 3 1608 1612 oo 13801 99999 Y 99999
& T, Cre & 6414 o 6418 3% & »% 300 .58% 3 . o o o g 5 N 1400 o 1702 13039 1 () 10564
© Q 403 [ R go < ~ 6 592
%o, © % %, 504 401 40, - ‘;o\y @ S 204 § 310 8 ® 2 57 = RR R g3 g,’ g A~ R 130 162 2a0a 192 I 13777 5130 11! IE\ 10518 0776
. 2 20 4910 403 05 2 0 ® @ B - 60 & o o . 880 & & O OMA 1430 w g8 S t 29 11392 i M orez
% %, 4999 4908 6305 503 40, 106 47 31 o S P, BEE 3 - 5 8 8 I8 w0z ° R R ¥ % 840 = 00.7 Sr g & v & %o 11336 o EADOW &
% @ 5 5 3 12411
%8, Bl av0r e 3% 2 5 40y 409 % ”°°Q,L "’“2@ $ @@ g 008 8T 7 438 ng 8 3 g R 05 800 \)A\ sp HAZELNUT DR & ~ 5’7 S 13877 1 5315 514 Lsen 4437 Cip 9794 &
4809 2 22% o ® T P U SR 3 h = i ¥ 507 108 PROSAg 153 N R 1832
3 3 2 2% 3 8 212 B S U 23 * o ) Cro o W ~ 13849 220 9820
wor G0 G R R TN, Y Foa 2 3 $ @g 2 g 5B 22 83 g g o N\ A R TR S o 2900 ° o821
v =, @ o @ © 500 5 2 o f5°b > R 3 < o 5 $9d 9¢ < 51 S oL A = HIGHV
4805 2 % 4% I TaTe m H N = B O 101 o4 »% Q 016, & 3 I 19 3 IEw p 10529
o & 3 % 3 QG 4 % oSS o 585 ~o g0 5 S $<</ 1420 S 198 ) g 2. MARBLE TRL R 9864 9865
& o - 3 505 99 09 5 oh o o 501 500 5893 B ES 388 a2 e @ Q Q& ~ 192. 10513
2 P S > © S R = B dIS9 S A 918 S 25 ~ (©) 197 oS
[ o 3 Os Yoy aB BB o AO¥ 919 &, @ <502 N\ 125 Q 2601 193. MERLIN DR
6 ~ ™ ® =3 N . 9902 1
s % % 2% 2 ° % g 2 ae s * w T BT T s s 8 8° =28 983gm » g 90 o 8§ 20 \,§ Ny A ¢ OOQ g 8: OQ 99999 05 & e s 194. GRANITE TRLE bR oo & 11305 0 R
> NN < ¥ YT > o ~ 2522 : G 4 4 o
2 2 g G- 504 5, 5 RB 2 BR® 5 - S © » 2) fo) o) > 5 195. STONEHEN v 9952 4634 &
2 > 425 507 506 ° = 5 S © 815 & o v . 4706 |
P % 2 o, ?}O = 5020 412 49 201 2 . @ 400 404 @ = BENadY § § R R ° & 25, Q\(? L () 3 ~ T (@) N $ ©  gs30 196. HERALD DR 4707 =
2 % %7 ek 414 120 e % TR 8§ 500 s08 . g o IIE § o2 S . 3 Q N 2619 (O 57 Q) g—’ & 2606 s 197. OUARRY TRL 12013 99999 4720
(5,8 Q. 16 © © .
2 3 3 %%o % ° R 418 4238 ‘:‘% c % - ¢ w @ 180 g g g 07 20 0% %00 801 500 428 e0s & L ~ c8 17 Q)v~ Q‘?\O ((,L @ § © él QQ— 132 T o 198. ONYX TRL 567 11421 o 4774 =
° g 2° 21. SKIPCHA D 433 - % 83859 1 - \ & 2703 < I~ ' MPEDE CIR 4972 11221 19981 8 4663 <f
2 . v e &3 14 00 © 6 504 801 @ &g o < ¢) ~ & 3 2607 199. STA 3
3 2 RL 22 21 e @83 5 o oF o © & B2 < e E
3 @ 22. CONCHO T 4 2, o 3 501 756 o« 2 g o o 2 2707 < = Q 0. RUSTLER CIR 1
) ' CE DR e 9 29 @ P° <o o ° ? ® 8 JFon ~ o (&) Y « L 2524 200. 4826 4171 4721
%2 gXE\INDDAANNCE LOOP = 437 > - 2 ) v 56 ‘9% o 0° 713 & *° 6()511 v @ OO 129 P ~ é(/ \% @pm 201. RIATAGCAIRDR -
. 3 o
oo 25. MISSOURI DR @ BT " 28 o ° e 109 *** 107 & 133 7 - 5 T I 202. CAYU 11067 § w1
. OoP g e % SER= eSO Y D 71 408 o &) < Ry 2711 K3 - S 4894
g %9 \W?LRB/IERSIZIFELSOS DR E N B © CEL N % 4 o 2, 2509 2533 02 2O N N A D < *lb' 2528 5140 10500 4895
2
23 . 2 S ¥ 3 3 % o 801 25 ~ NS “ 253, e
) 28. E GREAT PLAINS TRL sz 2%y % s B s R PR 2 . 37 & @ “ O $O 751 134 1
e B L © g % HaLoy, o ¥ 9 0 ELN o oo 2530 103 5
P ~
7105 2 37. HARVEST DR @ 3 s % 7 L 3% T 637 111 A DR 24 o I ’2\ Q?‘Q\ 2801 %%8 gwa\AERI?( LN ;\Q 03 22320 0 ’ 5318 11599 sz 0801 10689 T
- A : IR P L2 % 701 110 & 2805 ) a 2 o 1
2 38. SIOUX C ) 32 601 Ac 3] < S UAPIN LN = 2604 o ADR
> LA 2% HiLy Q 121. CHIN Q CIR AGOVIS
39. MISSION DR 3 v E @ . DGE DR < 2 2534 230. RODEO W, 10773 v
7201 : > % % 2604 R 122. DRAWBRI R 607 T DR &L
2 CHICKASAW DR & 2 < . 15) 2608 231, LAKEERON CHey
o B 40. e 2624 69 2607 Q 2803 123. CHAUCER LN > 2536 :
Y ENNE TRL 600 . = 610 2. SANDY POINT RD
7205 -8 & 41. CHEY D 800 2909 24. BADGER CIR = 2 232.
) 538 N LN 10651
207 o @ @8 5310 42. MOUNTAIN LION R s o 261 1 T W T . 12 254 2 2835 233. BLUE HERO 1711 319
3 8% o : TDR % 5 58 & 125. CESARINA'S N S 2 : SCT .
% ° 2 R 52. CROWFOO > 5 & I, . 14 3, CEDAR BREAK 10585 19
7209 ® 7307 2, 43. CANOE D . & N & * O TRL Q W 26 o 2839 234. 50
> g2 o 2913 126. KANGARO 2% IR
@ L CIR 53. OTTAWA DR & 5% & § o 2 . O ~ 2616 % 35. DRIFTWOOD C
3 310 44. CATTAI DR § g g s 7 LABY CIR 2627 2 235.
S F— Sy N 127. WAL 2543 % 3201 UFF CT 10515
) g 7400 54. WAMPUM o © & 5 € 3 o o 135 % 236. CEDAR BL
£ 7309 3 S 8 3 ] NEER TRL 8 2619 v 2750 .
% 5321 S 55. HOGAN DR ® g 70 © A a0 I 128. PIO g Bp 03 ROCK TRL 5550
] . & & ISTY 2620 3200 32 237. RIVER o)
> 204 o F 9 N FAUSTINO ST LE ¢ 2546 2833 . 11526
EER TRL 3 S @ R 129. o, 2547 K DR 5932
- 401 KILLEEN g? II%ESERVATION DR 2 &g 8 o = ° 2926 130. GRANT EDWIN BLVD for 436 sets e 220 2205 8 B 238. FALL CREE '%7
P401 5325 58. RAIN CLOUD TRL § c & ° & © 131, WILDE\éVFg_?A%I-??RL o 2550 C o szoe ’ 211 ’ w8 e 5928 1366
' 5 @ S g 2919 GOLD 2551 3 & 3225 1
7403 59. FALADR @ e ° & & > 8§ 8§ 2013 132. o) 2841 3206 N
@ 8 g 58 . % &8 sots 133. TORINO ST 2553 2552 @/l/ 230 o1 EAGLERIDGE & w0 5938 5575 L1362
© o 8@ & 134. DOUGLAS FIR DR e sa30 O’s' 00 o0 3303 w50 11539
§s °& g @ 135. JUBILATION DR > s 102 3212 a0 3224 N 3538 Q
& ® © =N 3200 2015 ERASER FIR DR 2555 . 2838 33 Q
% 2.8 o 136. 5 Q7 02 201 3216 w2 w26 g 3539 3536 2
oA & g % 2567 < 104 2018 P & 3307 9°
32, 43 § @ 2031 2558 2 2016 2022 & 37 ) 3534 Q,% 11361
<
O < & o 0 2914 231 3309 =T
Ry § R > 100. GAZELLE TRL 2934 O om 2004 772019 2021 2020 2022 2025 3304 3B O 3532 \/Vi‘_ 5761
25, 9 & P 2017 101. LEMONWOOD DR Ao B0 2923 . ot % 232 T s % mos B/ g ?\ 3530
sz & e BER T 2051 102. CIVET T'I?IliL ?G S 2025 0% oy 2B 2008 2 V0 2018 2021 358 3313 gay % 3528 5950 " [
7787 2 2 W 2013
5260 4 @ g %" 3005 %82 éIEEIQKI( SAUNDERS ST 2040 % 2918 (OQ° 201 2006 %, B oz oy 9 w8 3529 % 3526 "
X o 5 . 101 2008 2004 <, P S 2, @ 27 3524
® o I 1ZZLY TRL 2011 103 2009 25 S 3 2025 O 35 n
® @ D © 105. GRAPAHO DR 3401 2089 2205 100 105 2006 233 Y 2018 ° 201 s817 » 3522 6003
sy g N s151 106. AR 199 202 2005 2005 L99 g 2027 3312 3525
8 e 107. RED FERN DR w0 10 e o § & 10 2015 ae 2520 o1t
36, B * . 3221 g 108. BIGHORN DR @ 109 2000 2005 2013 2013 3314 234 3518
3399 e @ v - 6;0 & 2% 109- SNOW BIRD DR Q 2209 o6 2001 2006 2006 2008 3321
o % 3 . 1 111 3201 2003 2005 16 3521 516 6311 =
0, S ON DR 2963 Iy 108 <} 2002 33 3! - L
a0 . v 2 % 110. WHITE MO 2958 3203 202 § 2003 2004 009 3323 -
o % £ DR 32 T 3100 & 200 35 2 100 'Y 102 3519 3514
® % 3320 111, LAGUNA 1620 o ) 110 101 3205 2 2002 O s 4
o> @ 3307 : R 3401 . 2221 2001 237 sl > 3517 6321 r
; K e B0 %o ® 2t 71 q 112. JUNIPER DR <0° % & 8200 2964 L 8200 103 105 207 1900 g o 2005 V) T8 3
; r Cree o5 @ @ g = 5 KS CIR =) 2 100 3 8 9 2000 & & 3515 %
Trimmie e g 2 % 0 = 2 N 13. M ENIC TRAIL DR et % a0t 2007 200 ° 8 2003 %
Sl ¢ 8 s ? 114. SC oV 1811 @ > 102 107 ] S o 3B e o
,b'zﬂ‘a 2 % & 72 % = 115. MESOUITE BRANCH DR W 112 & 3017 2 e 2226 104 1992 1003 T @ 1900 3402 toa ” § g © 7 1 %
® % % ) IDGE DR © 2 12 o5 o 105 & s o 3337 35
$° e % g POy, G 116. QUAILR SSING 3414 K S 3016 2237 3204 1904 19 1904 19 1901 3400 & F %
° g v & (g\ EHIDE DR 117. WALDEN CRE 3400 1807 3014 Qo 106 416 > 3339 >
50 e G e 69. MOOS SUMMER GLEN DR 3402 & T e 2236 - 3206 1906 007 1003 & o 5 3 3509 .
a®  © % T % 70. OLIVE LN 118. 3408 ¥ o113 o 12 165 s 3220 1906 Y5s 5 2334 B P
® e % 7 1. VINEYARD TRL 2, 1806 ] 163 W 1908 o8 1905 1900 3 3412 3418 3343 r el
o B T « 71. 3500 Z b W £ 1914 19 103 » 3504
IS > 2 72. CHAPARRAL RD @ @ 3601 o, 3105 5 164 3 =3 2042 010 10, 1002 240 ss36 oS
g ® 9 73. GOMER LN %% > B0y g, 1802 5 %5 2 2 % 100s 8407 s o (1;2'5 BB o P
o, ~ . @R B P =} 191 RESS 3
@ &% '% 74. DEL REY DR L2 "%% %" 114 2605 3511 0, OOO'? 1008 003 2 o 2248 1909 1906 aazs OYF 10y 104 3338 3501 3500
k3 L 2 ° & 100
810 @ e 9% 2 @ % 3607 g8 3001 S 3100 1916 1911 1908 1934 103 105 107 0 o 2 2426
[o:] © o &) % 36 == 3 3417 » % T 3423
> O, O, e, @ 12 1 106 v
Y 2 @ - ug; %%y 3609 1803 169 1018 1975 1910 236 ==Y
©,
116 3600 - @ % ST L e e™ o 10 3600 2003 2017 10, 1012 e 102104 o 0 3424 h O O |
3602 2% % %% o W w 3920 3608 8 1920 915 Lo14 1930 o, 100 . M B © 3422
2 22 @ % 2 ? @ o 3606 3602 © 9. N 8 3403 S 30 g e 5
2 3606 2 & ERRCA e O > & 238 192, 3405 2 Q &
[ 603 @ @0 % AR s R
3614 08 O 01 O % 3604 © 1802 1016 % g,
3605 3900 © 310% o 3 3408 1110
3607 3610 o % 3603 018§ 3404 3406
3612 3607 5 % 305 3703 ¥ Lepp 1924 3402
2
3614 3609 3g0p @ 3607
5
3616 3611 Q © 3701 3806 a700 370 1901 162. LAKEVIEW DR P ar
13 3618 ge1 e wo 163. OAKWOOD DR
7709 1 o w0 615 O o B 2 3705 - 164. ELMWOOD CIR
8523 - %% T g0 3304 165. ELMWOOD DR
[
8705 28 C e 3 % a0 a300 166. CLIFFVIEW DR
3701 990 8 * @ 3 @ 1900 , @ L
3907 & 3711 %02 ? 67 I
3700 2000 3710 3713 115 300 N 1 Fa‘ : I I
3711 3712 w @ 2 Sy o %
sror 3011 w2 SRR 162 ~ - v ©
3710 S >
3711 & e % 2100 o1
1610 8 3006 3714 B 3803 )9 S N
3720 @ 3804 3805 = v 2 ) 168 2307 -
717 1709 2 o R%
3 3807 ) BB e 2311
3806 = (= X 0
3715 3730 UN o 9 2101 27 £
1425 QU AL R 3808 380 Pn 2212 2w 2315
2, 2212 iz [
2% B 1431 3801 1918 3810 "] 2111 2% 20 % 2317
% v 73 1430 . Fi
o ® 3800 3812 < > UL
% % e 1426 U S 9 % 2ot 170 ¥ 02 LEr LN = . =
B v %% 2 610 @ ‘® » 2205 S
3816 TS T RV 3819 99999 ‘o s o % > I re
R P ®, 2206 E=—y
% 2 9 2% 2w L s P
I N TER S 814 3827 8901 2207
% 2%° Ly B2C %% ¢ 43 394
- o 2R - 3001 39 5 1919 D 3003
6713 5 - 1400 18 .2 B R ‘g,N % 3902 003 3041 30 ;(()) 2005 . N
oA Lt -
e % % 1412 ¢ B 3901 * 3004 3940 * . I O n
6699 B B 3905 3939 <, -
IS 2 oo T 3900 o 3906 3938 3006 % LE
= o 3905 O,
01 3907 3937 .
7579 238 ° T 8% wm s P ws B 40 167. CHINABERRY CIR
2
7205 El HOTT s G 010 s34 Q 168. TYE VALLEY RD
3013 3011 3033 42 Y OAKS DR
fo) =z 3932 4012 169. VAL .
oo e g 5 L % e i ctivities Center
301 3930 4014 N . o |
3902 907 a6 2 -3( N sou 315 171 z 171. BELLA VISTA LOOP ‘m I b r ar /A tIVI I eS
4019 % 3909 3939 < % QO 3916 8017 3928 4016 2000 172. LAKECLIFFE DR —a
© ss04 001 (o3 § 8 4104 1 173. PAWNEE DR
3911 4900 “ > 9 4100 410 . TRCE
3906 4005 ' fe) 922 294 4106 . 174. ATOKA
3908 %13 a004 o Oé e 0o w0 175. TAHUAYA DR
4109 .
$ 915 S 10
T R SO : et Adoption Ce
3017
) 3012 w012 4000 2 166 . & o B a0
74 > 3914 3919 4446 2 ® % %? ) 5 =
-
3016 2 © .58 % . K
3921 (SR 4226 2
7565 7563 3913 % 172 % ’% % © > 2 o o
9721 5 (I B ® A 220 > g ® .
Iy %% (5} = B 5 B ¥
3 % R W S 4305
4102 53 & . S e‘ :
2 S 4213 426 v 4309
09 5
o a6 MO s ¥ am 4214 4210 175
120 a8 M 3 4209 173
4 4113 A 4212 o 174
7561 s 415 ES a .
a2 E T8 4208 O 4307 e, a | r
4114 v 3 o ~ I n
7551 9 2 I aeC C
9864 w° 5oy B 4200 g 8§S 4405
B <~
4118 2B BB Vg
N NZ
4969 (g/ 4“20 ® e 4318 4410
W 4314 S
(251 ?
N .
10465 10643
< “nasn 4 M I I eS
% 1.
o} 35 )
1y, [ ]
g “1mier Creek O O 1 ; .
(')'\)‘ | |
252
10 10653
1640




2021 - Future Land Use Map - Revised Sept. 14 2021

-

Low Density Residential
Medium Density Residential
Residential Estate

High Density Residential
Regional Commercial Centerg
Community Center
Government/Public Space
Overlook Utilization Area
Parks & Open Space

Industrial

A comprehensive plan shall not constitute zoning regulations
or establish zoning district boundaries. This is being done pe
Texas Local Government Code Section 213.005

(https://statutes.capitol.texas.gov/Docs/LG/htm/LG.213.htm)

\

City of Harker Heights
Planning and Development
305 Miller's Crossing
Harker Heights, TX 76548
254-953-5600
www.harkerheights.gov
Disclaimer: This product is for informational purposes and may not have been prepared for or be
suitable for legal, e ing, o surveying purposes. It does not represent an on-the-ground
survey and repres proximate relative location of property boundaries. Gov. C
§2501.102. The user is encouraged to independently verify all information contained in this
product. The City of Harker Heights makes no representation or warranty as to the accuracy of
this product or to its fitness for a particular purpose. The user: (1) accepts the product AS IS
WITH ALL FAULTS; (2) assumes all responsibilty for the use thereof; and (3) releases the City of
Harker Heights from any damage, loss, or liability arising from such use.

10,400
Feet




Harker
- Hel t§ CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM

CIAC-21-01 AGENDA ITEM # VI-2

FROM: THE OFFICE OF THE CITY MANAGER DATE: OCTOBER 26, 2021

CONDUCT APUBLIC HEARING TO DISCUSS AND CONSIDER ADOPTION OF LAND
USE ASSUMPTIONS AND A CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN RELATING TO
POSSIBLE ADOPTION OF IMPACT FEES FOR THE 2022 IMPACT FEE AREA, AND
TAKE THE APPROPRIATE ACTION.

EXPLANATION:

The City adopted the current Future Land Use Map (FLUM) in 2007. Since November 2020, the
Planning and Zoning Commission (P&Z) has received input and considered changes to the 2007
FLUM. On August 24, 2021, the P&Z voted 6-0 to recommend an updated Land Use Map to the
City Council.

The City previously retained Thonhoff Consulting Engineers to evaluate the current wastewater
capacity in the service basin along FM 2410 east of Warrior’s Path. Mr. Thonhoff finished his
report in February 2021 and determined that capital improvements to the City’s wastewater system
were needed in order to service that basin. The City then entered into an agreement with Freese
and Nichols to develop a wastewater impact fee for the eastern service area.

The City’s consultant, Ms. Jessica Vassar with Freese and Nichols, has evaluated the Thonhoff
report, Planning & Zoning Commission’s 2021 land use recommendations, current development
activity, and the existing Future Land Use Map with respect to their contribution to developing an
impact fee.

On September 14, 2021, the City Council voted to set two public hearing dates to consider the land
use assumptions and capital improvements plan relating to possible adoption of impact fees for the
2022 wastewater impact fee area. This is the first of the two set public hearing dates.

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommended approval to the Capital Improvement Advisory Committee (CIAC) of land use
assumptions and a capital improvements plan relating to possible adoption of impact fees for the
2022 wastewater impact fee area, as presented by Ms. Vassar. Texas Local Government Code
(LGC) Section 395.042 requires municipalities to hold a public hearing on a capital improvements
plan prior to adoption by the City Council. Staff recommends that the City Council establish the
public hearing dates for the October 26, 2021, and November 9, 2021, Council Meetings. These
two dates meet the LGC Sections 395.043 and 395.044 required timelines for public information
availability and public notices.

Page 1 of 2



ACTION BY CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT ADVISORY COMMITTEE:

According to Chapter 395 of the Texas Local Government Code, the Capital Improvement
Advisory Committee (CIAC) serves as the advisory committee for the 2022 Wastewater Impact
Fee study.

On August 25, 2021, the CIAC voted 6-0 to recommend approval of both the land use assumptions
and a capital improvements plan relating to possible adoption of impact fees for the 2022
wastewater impact fee area, based on staff’s recommendation and findings.

ACTIONBY CITY COUNCIL:
1. Take no action and hold a second public meeting on this item on November 9, 2021.
2. Any other action deemed necessary.

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Land Use Assumptions and Capital Improvements Plan Report

Page 2 of 2



E !=REESE
A :NICHOLS

DRAFT
WASTEWATER
IMPACT FEE STUDY

LAND USE ASSUMPTIONS AND
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN REPORT

Prepared for:

City of Harker Heights

August 2021

Prepared by:

FREESE AND NICHOLS, INC.
10431 Morado Circle, Suite 300
Austin, Texas 78759
512-617-3100



E EREESE
A :NICHOLS

DRAFT
WASTEWATER
IMPACT FEE STUDY

LAND USE ASSUMPTIONS AND
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN REPORT

Prepared for:

City of Harker Heights

DRAFT

THIS DOCUMENT IS RELEASED
FOR THE PURPOSE OF INTERIM
REVIEW UNDER THE AUTHORITY
OF JESSICA VASSAR, P.E., TEXAS
NO. 108934 ON 8/18/2021. ITIS
NOT TO BE USED FOR
CONSTRUCTION, BIDDING OR
PERMIT PURPOSES.
FREESE AND NICHOLS, INC.
TEXAS REGISTERED ENGINEERING
FIRM F-2144

Prepared by:

FREESE AND NICHOLS, INC.
10431 Morado Circle, Suite 300
Austin, Texas 78759
512-617-3100

FNI Project No.: HAK21373



Wastewater Impact Fee Study F FREESE E 1
DRAFT Land Use Assumptions and Capital Improvements Plan Report I :NICHOLS

City of Harker Heights

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.0 BACKGROUND AND SCOPE ......ciiiismsmsssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssasssssanss 1-1
1.1 Texas Local GOVErnment COAE.......oommmmmmmmmnisernesessessessessessessessssssssesssssesssssssssssssssssesssses 1-1
1.2 MeEthOAOLOZY oottt s bbb bbbt 1-2
1.3 LiSt Of ADDIEVIAtIONS ..vuieiereereereereeretses ettt ses et s et s bbb st 1-3
2.0 LAND USE ASSUMPTIONS.....cooiiismsmssmmsmsmsssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssassssssssasssssans 2-1
0 RN Y <) a7 (o2 - U 2-1
2.2 Historical and Projected GroOWth.......sesssesesssses s sssssessseses 2-4
2.2.1  HiStorical POPUIAtION ..ottt 2-4
2.2.2  Projected GIOWLN ..ttt 2-4

3.0 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN ....cccoiimsmsmsnsssssmsmssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssassssssssassssanss 3-1
3.1 Wastewater Load ProjJECiONS .......nrninesrinnesessssesessssesesssssssss s ssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnes 3-1
3.2 Wastewater System IMPrOVEMENTS......corrrencrnirensinesess s sessssssenes 3-1

List of Figures

Figure 2-1:  ImMpPact FEE SEIVICE Ara ... i it e e e e e et e e e e e e e eesenaaans 2-2
FIgUre 2-2:  FULUIE LANG USE....uuuiuiuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiuiutuiernrersiersrsesssresssesnsarssasssssssssssssssssssssssssnsssnnns 2-3
Figure 3-1:  Wastewater Impact Fee Capital Improvements Plan........cccocovvevevviiieeinniieeeennnee, 3-3
List of Tables
Table 1-1: List Of ADDreviationS........uviiiiiiiee e 1-3
Table 2-1: Historical Population within City LimitS.......ccccovcviiiiiiiiieeiniieecereec e, 2-4
Table 2-2: Wastewater Impact Fee Service Area Growth ........cccceeiveiieeiiniiiee e 2-4
Table 3-1: Impact Fee Service Area Wastewater Flow Projections.........cccoecvveeiviiveeeinnnnenn. 3-1
Table 3-2: Wastewater Impact Fee Capital Improvements Plan..........cccoevveeeiiniiieniniiieeenns 3-2



Wastewater Impact Fee Study F FREESE E 1
DRAFT Land Use Assumptions and Capital Improvements Plan Report I :NICHOLS

City of Harker Heights

1.0 BACKGROUND AND SCOPE

In April 2021, the City of Harker Heights, Texas (City) authorized Freese and Nichols, Inc. (FNI) to perform
an impact fee analysis for the southeast portion of the City’s wastewater system. The purpose of this
report is to document the land use assumptions and capital improvements plan which will be used in the
development and calculation of wastewater impact fees for the City of Harker Heights. The methodology
used herein satisfies the requirements of the Texas Local Government Code (TLGC) Section 395 (Section
1.1) for the establishment of impact fees. The City does not currently charge wastewater impact fees to

new developments.

1.1 TEXAS LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE

Chapter 395 of the Texas Local Government Code requires an impact fee analysis before impact fees can
be created and assessed. Chapter 395 defines an impact fee as “a charge or assessment imposed by a
political subdivision against new development in order to generate revenue for funding or recouping the
costs of capital improvements or facility expansions necessitated by and attributable to the new
development.” In September 2001, Chapter 395 was amended creating the current procedure for

implementing impact fees. Chapter 395 identifies the following items as impact fee eligible costs:

e Construction contract price

e Surveying and engineering fees

e Land acquisition costs

e Fees paid to the consultant preparing or updating the capital improvements plan (CIP)

e Projected interest charges and other finance costs for projects identified in the CIP
Chapter 395 also identifies items that impact fees cannot be used to pay for, such as:

e Construction, acquisition, or expansion of public facilities or assets other than those identified on
the capital improvements plan

e Repair, operation, or maintenance of existing or new capital improvements

e Upgrading, updating, expanding, or replacing existing capital improvements to serve existing
development in order to meet stricter safety, efficiency, environmental, or regulatory standards

e Upgrading, updating, expanding, or replacing existing capital improvements to provide better

service to existing development

1-1



Wastewater Impact Fee Study F FREESE E 1
DRAFT Land Use Assumptions and Capital Improvements Plan Report I :NICHOLS

City of Harker Heights

e Administrative and operating costs of the political subdivision
e Principal payments and interest or other finance charges on bonds or other indebtedness, except

as allowed above

As a funding mechanism for capital improvements, impact fees allow cities to recover the costs associated
with new or facility expansion in order to serve future development. Statutory requirements mandate
that impact fees be based on a specific list of improvements identified in a capital improvements program
and only the cost attributed (and necessitated) by new growth over a 10-year period may be considered.
As projects in the program are completed, planned costs are updated with actual costs to more accurately
reflect the capital expenditure of the program. Additionally, new capital improvement projects may be

added to the system.

1.2 METHODOLOGY

Wastewater impact fee capital improvements plan (CIP) projects were developed for the City based on
the land use assumptions, input from City staff, and projects from previous studies. The recommended
improvements will provide the required capacity to meet projected wastewater flows through year 2032.

The projects identified are consistent with the Chapter 395 definition of impact fee eligible projects.

As part of the impact fee development, FNI will conduct workshops with the City’s appointed Capital
Improvements Advisory Committee (CIAC) and City Council. FNI will calculate the maximum allowable
impact fee utilizing the 50% credit methodology identified in TLGC Chapter 395. The CIAC's role includes
reviewing the land use assumptions and impact fee CIP and recommending an impact fee rate to the City

Council. The City Council sets the impact fees to be collected.

1-2



) |

Wastewater Impact Fee Study F FREESE
DRAFT Land Use Assumptions and Capital Improvements Plan Report I :NICHOLS

City of Harker Heights
1.3 LIST OF ABBREVIATIONS

The list of abbreviations used in this report are presented in Table 1-1.

Table 1-1: List of Abbreviations
Abbreviation Actual
CIAC Capital Improvement Advisory Committee
CIP Capital Improvement Plan
FNI Freese and Nichols, Inc.
MGD Million Gallons per Day
TCE Thonhoff Consulting Engineers, Inc.
TLGC Texas Local Government Code

1-3



Wastewater Impact Fee Study F FREESE E 1
DRAFT Land Use Assumptions and Capital Improvements Plan Report I :NICHOLS

City of Harker Heights

2.0 LAND USE ASSUMPTIONS

2.1  SERVICE AREA

Projected land use is an important element in the analysis of wastewater collection and treatment
systems. To assist the City in determining the need and timing of capital improvements to serve future
development, a reasonable estimation of future growth is required. These assumptions will become the

basis for the preparation of impact fee capital improvement plans for wastewater facilities.

FNI worked with City staff to develop growth projections and land use assumptions for the study area
during the development of this report. The City is anticipating the majority of future developments to
occur roughly within the southeast portion of the City, and therefore determined to set the wastewater
impact fee service area to this boundary, shown on Figure 2-1. The future land use for the service area is

presented on Figure 2-2.

2-1



,/67 -
78 -
Evergreen
Lift Station
\\
\ J
\\ 6
\\
\

CTE
Lift Station

6"

DRAFT FIGURE 2-1
CITY OF

HARKER HEIGHTS

WASTEWATER IMPACT FEE

SERVICE AREA
LEGEND

Lift Station Road
Wastewater Treatment Plant River
8" and Smaller
Lake
Wastewater Line
10" and Larger Parcel

Wastewater Line

Wastewater Service Area

——+—+— Railroad

) |

ETJ Boundary

City Limit

FREESE
‘NICHOLS

'\,\p

/] Harker Heights

/ WWTP

// \\\\
/ T
/ A
/ =
7 =
/ =
¥ &
I/ 6]
/
/ S
/
l_ 2 6" o
| _® - P
\‘ B
6
\\ 6"
\\6
R
e Harker Heights
©
e 9
! |  Lift Station
/o &
/=/ & * 6
//‘o g g : o
6
/rB 6 Y 6"
6 6 S
4 o
// 7 %
y &
// VI 8 g A
"
& 6 — a s
o) = 6" b7/ 6"
2 o oy S
6 \& ©' & & 6' 6" ©
© ©
{2} =
: 6" & P 6 ©
£S 6"
&
o L e o
©
© &
') &
6 6 S
6 N4 55 "g
6 6 3
> <
6 g 2 s

Trimmier Creek
Lift Station

15"

Wildewood
Lift Station

~
1
/
/
1
/
1
/
/
. l/
Tonight /
Lift Station //
/I
/
/
1
/
1
/
1
/
1
/
1
/
1
/
I
/

¢ g \\‘\
6 S~
W T Thorough
¢ S ey - qroug .bred
X/ Yo e N\ Lift Station
S
< T © 8" \\
oA & Wiy
o (N L6 T
[ o) & o ~ 6
S 6 ©, &

6 ©
= ~5 I &
o ©
6"
O~
5
6" 6"
I e
6 & &
6 ©
6

o

s/| End-O-Trail
Lift Station '

Warriors Path
Lift Station

Osage
Lift Station 5

|Rocky Ridge

Lift Station

<
. = EN
‘3 /
6 = ////
6 6 & .
A L a8 8 y/
n & |8 L1
n 6" 6\_\0’ = T
6 )
& o g S\ > 6 —~>
& 10 //
¥ [ o " 3
6 & 6 .‘:’ ,/ //\\
6 & & { ~ ~
S 6" \‘\~\ /’/
/3 ¢/{ Pueblo g — o -
6" . . a S s~
6" = iy e
Lift Station . 75m ~— 18
h /
o \ ", 27n
\ i U
\\ / 27
67 N
")"-_ — \l/ :7{
G
" //N\N\N
10" A2 / \N\I
/ /
4 1
/ /
1
LI 4
o . /
\N\\NJ/
Fawn Valley
Lift Station
/\\
20N, :/
// W\ I/
4 N\
\ J/ J
\\ /\\
\\ .- \\
\\ //// = I \\
\\/’/ \\\ \\\
bl =
N =
\\ L
\\\\ -_’/’,-———
e
N,
7
¢/’/’\\\§\
// N\\\
7 NG
] N
.' “~
/ \
-
\\ \\
\ \ /
\ \\ //
\ \ 4
\ \ /
| \ 4
1 \\ //
\ \, 4
1 \ 4
) \ /
/// \\\ ///
7 < s
/’/’ \\\\\_/”—//

~———

7N
S S
Rummel //
Lift Station /
A~ /
— — /
\\\\ I/
\\
SV A
J\\ /
~./
/
/
/
/
!
/
!
/
!
/
7l
/
I\~\
7
1
/
1
/
1
J
/
1l
/
/
/
1
/
1
J
{
Q |
N 1
N\ |
N\ 1
N /}
N
\\ /
N
Ny

0 2,000 4,000
I ey ——
SCALE IN-FEET

Created By Freese and Nichols, Inc.

Job No.: HAK21373

Location: H\W_WW_PLANNING\01_DELIVERABLES\01_EXISTING_SYSTEM\(Figure_1)-Wastewater_Impact_Fee_Service_Area.mxd
Updated: Wednesday, May 26, 2021 1:43:23 PM

User Name: 02818




3! 6" = / /
y 6“ 6,1 / = <:° /I/ /
6/ © / //
.. . Yl
McGinnis & g g/l
Lift Station & y No,
// f/,/ 3
¢l // ()kYJ/
// l
/
/
" > /
/\8 3 //
UMy - .;' /
/
/)
) /
/
& // &
i
2 ’ <
% /7 ng
a I/
60r WS /
// Vs
& o I/ / N
I/ //
j
Pueblo 5 y
« |Lift Station / 10 &/
v /' P
6" 6" / ////
, / /////’
6 ST —
8 6 L
0O
A o
& & S 6
(& & —_—— /4 Rummel
" Lift Station
s & .
& 5
1 " ‘\‘\\\
6" <:o 6" 8 \\\\\
8" s 6“ & S >
o y v
8" 8'1 r—= <:° N \\\\\
g % -67) . ~\\/
" o) N
A5 i S
2 . /
.r 6"
= -
® 9 q
& ‘ S
=)\ od 2l J
10" / - p— '/
1nll 6"
= 12“
=) 6"
=
EMs2410
- ‘.;’ i "l /
™~
12"
8" °°] ,‘Z’ //
6" J
. J
6" . I/
6! i, b
6" 10"
10" S
754/ :
(:o a3
o
& Fawn Valley
y Lift Station
I/I
& i/
g
/
4
Ly 7
N J
/
/
DRAFT FIGURE 2-2 /
/
/
CITY OF ‘,,
!
i
HARKER HEIGHTS |
\
:
IMPACT FEE SERVICE AREA |
\\ |
\\\ |‘
FUTURE LAND USE j
\\ /I
/
LEGEND /
A !
Lift Station River /AN % /
8" and Small 7~ \ N /
and Smaller i \ N, /
Wastewater Line Lake // 2 N\ //
’ \\ N
10" and Larger Parcel // Y N
Wastewater Line / 2
D Wastewater Impact i %
———+—— Railroad Fee Service Area [
FUTURE LAND USE
Road ETJ Boundary
Community Center Overlook Utilization Area
City Limit
- Government/Public Space - Parks & Open Space
Low Density Residential Regional Commercial Centers |
FREESE || | — 0 600 1,200
-. a] Medium Density Residential Residential Estate \\\‘\J O
EI\"CHOLS ’ . [ Stillhouse Hollow Lake SCALE IN FEET
RS \ -

Created By Freese and Nichols, Inc.
Job No.: HAK21373
Location: H\W_WW_PLANNING\01_DELIVERABLES\02_Land_Use\(Figure_2-2)-Service_Area_Land_Use.mxd

Updated: Wednesday, August 18, 2021 10:25:23 AM
User Name: JBV/



Wastewater Impact Fee Study F FREESE
DRAFT Land Use Assumptions and Capital Improvements Plan Report I :NICHOLS

) |

City of Harker Heights
2.2  HISTORICAL AND PROJECTED GROWTH
2.2.1 Historical Population

Historical population data was provided in the February 2021 Wastewater Flow Capacity Analysis Report
developed by Thonhoff Consulting Engineers, Inc. (TCE). The City had an average 2.2% annual growth rate

over the past eight years. This historical population information is presented in Table 2-1.
Table 2-1: Historical Population within City Limits

Average Annual
Growth Rate

Population (%)
2012 27,894
2013 28,563 2.4%
2014 29,233 2.3%
2015 29,903 2.3%
2016 30,573 2.2%
2017 31,243 2.2%
2018 31,913 2.1%
2019 32,583 2.1%
2020 33,253 2.1%

Average 2.2%

2.2.2 Projected Growth

The magnitude and distribution of the growth in the service area will dictate where future wastewater
infrastructure is required. It is important to note that projecting future growth is challenging, especially
for relatively small geographic areas such as individual cities or sections of cities, because it can be difficult
to predict how fast or slow development will occur when there are a variety of circumstances that can
impact it. Table 2-2 presents the City’s projected growth for the 10-year planning period for the

wastewater impact fee service area.

Table 2-2: Wastewater Impact Fee Service Area Growth

Year Connections

2022 125
2032 1,500

2-4



Wastewater Impact Fee Study F FREESE E 1
DRAFT Land Use Assumptions and Capital Improvements Plan Report I :NICHOLS

City of Harker Heights

3.0 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN

Wastewater capital improvement plan (CIP) projects were developed for the City of Harker Heights in the
February 2021 Wastewater Flow Capacity Analysis Report by TCE. The wastewater CIP projects that are
required to serve growth within the next 10 years were identified for inclusion in the wastewater impact

fee analysis.

3.1 WASTEWATER LOAD PROJECTIONS

Wastewater flow projections for 2022 and 2032 were developed using criteria from the February 2021
Wastewater Flow Capacity Analysis Report. 2.97 people per connection and 76 gallons per capita per day
were assumed for wastewater flow projections A wet weather peaking factor of 4.0 was applied to
calculate the peak wet weather flow. Table 3-1 presents the projected wastewater flows for the

wastewater impact fee service area in million gallons per day (MGD).

Table 3-1: Impact Fee Service Area Wastewater Flow Projections

Year Average Daily Flow Peak Wet Weather Flow
(MGD) (MGD)

2022 0.03 0.11

2032 0.34 1.35

3.2 WASTEWATER SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS

The TCE 2021 Wastewater Flow Capacity Analysis Report included proposed wastewater system
improvements. A summary of the proposed projects serving growth in the 10-year period used in the
impact fee analysis is shown in Table 3-2. The proposed impact fee CIP projects are shown on Figure 3-

1.

3-1



Wastewater Impact Fee Study

DRAFT Land Use Assumptions and Capital Improvements Plan Report F.

FREESE
{NICHOLS

) |

City of Harker Heights

Table 3-2:

Project
Number

Project Name
EXISTING

Wastewater Impact Fee Capital Improvements Plan

Rummel Lift Station and Force Main

w (>

15/18/21/27" Gravity Line

@]

Impact Fee Study

PROPOSED

10-inch Force Main

Rummel Lift Station Expansion

Proposed Lift Station and 18-inch Force Main

24/27" Gravity Line

i W|IN |-

1.5 MGD Wastewater Treatment Plant Expansion

3-2



DRAFT FIGURE 3-1

CITY OF

HARKER HEIGHTS

WASTEWATER IMPACT FEE

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN
LEGEND

Existing Impact Fee Eligible

8" and Smaller
Wastewater Line

Wastewater Line 10" and Larger

Wastewater Line

Force Main
—=—=—m Force Main
Proposed Impact Fee Eligible
N ———— Railroad
Lift Station
Wastewater Treatment Road
Plant
River
—m—m—m [orce Main
Lake
Wastewater Line
Parcel

Existing Wastewater System

Wastewater Impact Fee

Lift Station Service Area

ETJ Boundary

City Limit

FREESE
:NICHOLS

/
/
|
; in
\\
2 6
\\
\\ N
i
©
|
/,4;, A
%)
l/ Q)
3
/ 6"
/s 6"
©
/// <
//'(;) 6" /i
[ o
o [ 6’
- ©
s \& 6
7 o, pe 6 © o
2 o &/ <&
Evergreen o/

Lift Station

Trimmier Creek

Lift Station
Capacity: 2,700 GPM

Harker Heights
WWTP
1.5 MGD WWTP Expansion

>

Harker Heights
Lift Station =)

6 67 &
6" .
6 ©
[ 6
o
s 6"
© 6
6"
6 3 9
6 o 8n /.
6" ~ 10‘:,-

\ A
\ \ BISREE
\ ///“ e i //’\
\\ " &, 5, /,// \
\\
\\A e~ \‘
= «‘7 \
/ \
\ \
\
\
I
/
(
\\
\
Ny
\
N
\~~/\—\\ i
N \
N \
N \
SSq !
=)
// //
p .
/////
o 4
7
7 <
4 N
= N
N
N
N\
\
N\,
N\,
&
Y
\\
\\
~.
‘\

Tonight

Lift Station

SS—
~~~
~~
—
—

© \\\ = Sy
s G Thoroughbred T S i
<&, & S 122N . . Sy
6 L e Pl Lift Station S T
o 5 N SISy o Slah
L Py © & \\-»51'\\ o G" -
; & o SFm, Warriors Path
. s 0- H °f & X & 6% . 6" ‘\\ . .
o % Er_|d o) Trall & of N [ o Lift Station
s/ | Lift Station of 3L L L Al
& © 7 1 15 /
kN St of
e 7 6 ,/// Rocky Ridge
& R / . .
.Osag.e beeis % ;“ : Lift Station
Lift Station AL > L4
N N o 2 I
& iy
o i/
© ) > I/I‘
/f’/
% Rummel
Lift Station
Expand to 1,000 GPM
Pueblo r— e — ‘Er-
Lift Station 75m 18 / "‘\‘ Y 1 P
- 0 //
- AN o
\\\\\\ ’3
& S—- —
‘—‘“‘: =) — —
> r~
e — m— S\
— =
e — /’
— — // /
I/ /
& 7
\~\~\\ J/
of % ) Fawn Valley N
&S~ Lift Station /,/ N
& Capacity: 720 GPM / N
/I
1
/
» /
/ \\ A //
// \\ ) 4 \\\ /I
// \\ /// \\ //
T~y \\ // v
\\ \\ /\\
\\ \\ - \\
\ \ L m——S \
sl \V N \ N
f RENY - RO \
_____ / DN RN
N\ N\ \C
\\\ \\\ _/_,,/’
W\ SS=COW =
N\ —————
N\
\\
\\
\\
Y )
AR <
/
/
/
J
= /
/_//’// \\\ { .
< \ \\ //’/ N\“\\ o/
="\ \\\ \\ Ny 4 \\\\ ///
\ ) \ ) | ) y
\ / N N ] S i
\\ / I i II \\\ 4
\\ ,/ I/ i | \\\ //
\ L ’ / ! \ ) /
I\ P , i \\ //
No# - \\ \\ //
\ |\ /
\ \ r 4
2 \l \ / 4
N \ A /
/ \\\ ‘ \\ /
// _ J \ /
/I \\\\ /// \ ///
1 N 7 \‘\ //
| S //// ‘\\\ /_/,/
I o _— =
/
[
- 1
~d

—
——
—_

>)
0 2,000 4,000
I e ——

SCALE IN-FEET

Created By Freese and Nichols, Inc.

Job No.: HAK21373

Location: H:\W_WW_PLANNING\01_DELIVERABLES\04_Impact_Fee_CIP\(Figure_1)-Wastewater_IF_CIP.mxd
Updated: Friday, August 13, 2021 3:45:38 PM

User Name: 03812




Helgﬁ

AG

CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM

ENDA ITEM # I1X-1

FROM: THE OFFICE OF THE CITY MANAGER

DATE: OCTOBER 26, 2021

DISCUSS AND CONSIDER APPOINTING MEMBERS TO THE PARKS & RECREATION/TREE

ADVISORY BOARDS; LIBRARY BOARD; PUBLIC SAFETY COMMISSION; ANIMAL

ADVISORY COMMITTEE; ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION; HARKER

HEIGHTS ARTS COMMISSION; AND TAKE THE APPROPRIATE ACTION.

BACKGROUND:

Consider appointments to the following Boards/Commissions/Committees:

mmoow>

PARKS & RECREATION/TREE ADVISORY BOARD
LIBRARY BOARD
PUBLIC SAFETY COMMISSION

ANIMAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
HARKER HEIGHTS ARTS COMMISSION

A. PARKS & RECREATION/TREE ADVISORY BOARD:

Current Member Position Eligible for Name of Reappointed Member or
Reappointment? New Member
Eva Keagle Member No (Term limited)
Angie Wilson Member Yes
Alonzo Williams Alternate #1 Yes
Yomi Hardison Alternate #2 Yes

ACTION BY THE CITY COUNCIL:

1. Motion to appoint the members of the Parks & Recreation/Tree Advisory Board as listed to take
effect on January 1, 2022.

2. Any action desired by the City Council

B. LIBRARY BOARD:

Current Member Position Eligible for Name of Reappointed Member
Reappointment? or New Member
Barbara Kelly Member Yes
Julianna Greene Member No (Did not reapply)
Ramona Rubedor Member No (Did not reapply)
Vacant Alternate #1 -
Vacant Alternate #2 -

ACTION BY THE CITY COUNCIL:

1. Motion to appoint the members of the Library Board as listed to take effect on January 1, 2022.

2. Any action desired by the City Council




C. PUBLIC SAFETY COMMISSION:

Current Member Position Eligible for Name of Reappointed Member
Reappointment? or New Member
Dick Dwinell Member Yes
Jeremy Hoffman Alternate #1 Yes
Yomi Hardison Alternate #2 Yes

ACTION BY THE CITY COUNCIL.:

1. Motion to appoint the members of the Public Safety Commission as listed to take effect January
1, 2022.

2. Any action desired by the City Council

D. ANIMAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE:

Current Member Position Eligible for Name of Reappointed Member
Reappointment? or New Member
Finni Dirr Alternate #1 Yes
George Grammas Alternate #2 Yes
Karry Woods Alternate #3 No (Did not reapply)
Vacant Alternate #4 -

ACTION BY THE CITY COUNCIL:

1. Motion to appoint the members of the Animal Advisory Committee as listed to take effect on
January 1, 2022.

2. Any action desired by the City Council

E. HARKER HEIGHTS ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION:

Current Member Position Eligible for Name of Reappointed Member
Reappointment? or New Member
Hal Schiffman Place 1 Yes
Spencer H. Smith Place 3 Yes
Mike Aycock Place 5 Yes
David Mitchell Place 7/Secretary Yes

ACTION BY THE CITY COUNCIL.:
1. Motion to appoint the members of the Economic Development Corporation as listed.
2. Any action desired by the City Council

F. ARTS COMMISSION:

Current Member Position Name of Reappointed Member
or New Member
New — 3 year term Council Member
New — 3 year term Chamber Member
New — 2 year term Member
New — 2 year term Member
New — 1 year term Member

ACTION BY THE CITY COUNCIL:
1. Motion to appoint the members of the Arts Commission as listed.
2. Any action desired by the City Council




CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM
He1 t§

AGENDA ITEM # I X-2

FROM: THE OFFICE OF THE CITY MANAGER DATE: OCTOBER 26, 2021

DISCUSS AND CONSIDER APPROVING ARESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF
THE CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS, REAPPOINTING JARED BRYAN AS THE
CITY OF HARKERHEIGHTS REPRESENTATIVE ON THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
THE TAX APPRAISAL BOARD OF BELL COUNTY, TEXAS, AND TAKE THE
APPROPRIATE ACTION.

EXPLANATION:

The Tax Appraisal District of Bell County is requesting the City of Harker Heights to adopt a
resolution confirming the representative for the City of Harker Heights on the Tax Appraisal Board
of Directors for a term of two years beginning on January 1, 2022.

Mr. Bryan has been our representative on this board for the last several years. He currently serves as
the Chairman of the Tax Appraisal District Board of Bell County.

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval.

ACTION BY COUNCIL:

1. Motion to APPROVE/DISAPPROVE a Resolution of the City Council of the City of Harker
Heights, Texas, to reappoint Jared Bryan as the City of Harker Heights representative on the
Board of Directors of the Tax Appraisal Board of Bell County, Texas.

2. Any other action desired.

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Letter from Chief Appraiser Billy White
2. Resolution




Tax Appraisal District of Bell County

October 4, 2021

City of Harker Heights
Spencer Smith, Mayor
305 Miller's Crossing
Harker Heights TX 76548

Dear Mayor Smith

Section 6.03(b) of the Tax Code states that members of the board of directors of the
appraisal district serve two-year terms beginning on January 1 of even-numbered years.

In accordance with (Resolution NO. 01-2021) passed by the board of directors at their
May 18, 2021 meeting, the selection process essentially is the same. Bell County, the
City of Killeen, Killeen ISD, the City of Temple, and Temple ISD appoint one member
each to the board of directors. The City of Belton and Belton ISD jointly appoint one
member, and all other taxing units jointly appoint the seventh member.

Please have your governing body confirm by resolution not later than November 2,
2021 their choice for appointment to the board of directors for a two year term beginning
January 1, 2022.

If you have any questions please call.

Sincerely

7.

Billy White
Chief Appraiser

BWI/lh

PO BOX 390, 411 E, Central Ave, Belton, Texas 76513
(254} 939-5841 | www.bellcad.org




RESOLUTION

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS,
TEXAS, REAPPOINTING JARED BRYAN AS THE CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS
REPRESENTATIVE ON THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE TAX APPRAISAL
BOARD OF BELL COUNTY, TEXAS.

WHEREAS, the Legislature of the State of Texas under the provisions of the Property
Tax Code, Section 6.03(b), has provided that members of Board of Directors of the Tax
appraisal District serve two-year terms beginning on January 1% of even numbered years;
and

WHEREAS, the City of Harker Heights has a need for a representative on the Board of
Directors; and

WHEREAS, Jared Bryan, has been the City of Harker Heights Representative on the
Board of Directors of the Tax Appraisal Board of Bell County, Texas, and would do well
continuing as the Harker Heights representative on the Board of Directors of the Tax
Appraisal Board of Bell County.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Harker
Heights, Texas, to:

1. Reappoint Jared Bryan as the City of Harker Heights
representative on the Board of Directors of the Tax
Appraisal Board of Bell County, Texas.

PASSED AND APPROVED this 26™ day of October, 2021, at a meeting which the City
Council finds to have been held in strict accordance with the requirements of the Texas
Open Meetings Act.

CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS:

Spencer H. Smith, Mayor

ATTEST:

Julie Helsham, City Secretary



CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM

Hel t§ AGENDA ITEM # 1 X-3

FROM: THE OFFICE OF THE CITY MANAGER DATE: OCTOBER 26, 2021

DISCUSS AND CONSIDER APPROVING A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS, TO PARTICIPATE IN THE GLOBAL OPIOIDS
SETTLEMENT; AND TAKE THE APPROPRIATE ACTION.

BACKGROUND:

Texas, along with a broad coalition of states and subdivisions, has reached final agreements with four
companies to resolve legal claims against them for their role in the opioid crisis. One agreement is with
opioid manufacturer Johnson & Johnson (J&J). The other is with three major pharmaceutical distributors:
AmerisourceBergen, Cardinal Health, and McKesson.

According to the Texas Attorney General’s Office, the two agreements provide for $26 billion in payments
over 18 years, with $23.9 billion available for opioid abatement and signifcant amounts front loaded.
Funding will be distributed to states according to the allocation agreement reached among the Attorneys
General. Subdivisions can only participate in the agreement if their state participates. Texas’ combined
share is almost $1.5 billion: $1.17 billion from the distributors and $268 million from J&J. Distribution
within Texas is handled through an intrastate agreement between the state and litigating subdivisions. The
funding must be used to support any of a wide variety of strategies to fight the opioid crisis. Once the state
agrees to participate, then the more subdivisions that join, the more money everyone in Texas will receive.

The City will have until January 2, 2022, to join the Texas Attorney General’s Office in the Global Opioids
Settlement.

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval.

ACTIONBY CITY COUNCIL:

1. Motion to APPROVE/DISAPPROVE a Resolution of the City Council of the City of Harker Heights,
Texas, to participate in the Opioids Settlement.

2. Any other action desired.

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Attorney General of Texas Power Point
2. Proposed Resolution

Page 1 of 1



KEN PAXTON

ATTORNEY GENERAL of TEXAS

Global Opioids Settlement

What it means for Texas

This presentation is for informational purposes and does not constitute legal advice.



Opioids Crisis Update

* In 2020, drug overdose deaths * The opioid overdose death
rose nearly 30% in the United increase was driven by fentanyl and
States to a record high of 93,000. other synthetic opioids.

* Opioid overdose deaths hit a * Attorney General Paxton’s website
record 69,000 in the United has information to protect Texans
States. from the nation’s opioid crisis by

educating them about the dangers

of misusing prescription opioids.
* In Texas, drug overdose deaths

o . Sources:
a ISO Increa SEd by 31.9%’ d riven "Provisional Drug Overdose Death Counts” Centers for Disease Control: National
. . . . Center for Health Statistics (last accessed July 23, 2027),
p rimari Iy by (@) p 101 d ove rd ose https://www.cdc.gov/nchs/nvss/vsrr/drug-overdose-data.htm
"U.S. Drug-Overdose Deaths Soared Nearly 30% in 2020, Driven by Synthetic
deathS . Opioids” Betsy McKay, Wall Street Journal (July 14, 2027),

https://www.wsj.com/articles/u-s-drug-overdose-deaths-soared-nearly-30-in-
2020-11626271200 5




Opioids Settlements

* On July 23, 2021, Attorney General Paxton announced global
settlements had been reached with the three major opioid
distributors McKesson, Cardinal Health, and Amerisource Bergen
(ABDC), and opioid manufacturer Johnson & Johnson (J&J).

* Both settlements are a combined historic $26 billion.
* The distributors’ settlement is for $21 billion.
» J&J’s settlement is for S5 billion.

* The settlements include injunctive relief that changes the industry.



Opioids Settlements

» Texas could receive as much as $1.17 billion from the distributors
and $268 million from J&J for almost $1.5 billion, most of which is
targeted for opioid abatement.

* The actual amount Texas receives will depend upon the participation of cities,
counties, and other political subdivisions in the state.

* Texas has 30 days to decide to join both settlements.



Opioids Settlements

* Injunctive Relief in the Settlements:

e J&J is enjoined from manufacturing, selling, and promoting
opioids for 10 years.

 Distributors must establish a centralized clearinghouse
jointly overseen by states and distributors.

* Distributors will be required to take certain measures to
detect suspicious orders.



Opioids Settlements

* Mechanics of the Monetary Settlement:

* Texas’s overall allocation is 6.29% of the Global Amount —
potentially almost $1.5 billion over 18 years from:

* Distributors - $1.17 billion over 18 years.
* J&J - over $268 million over 9 years.

* Annual payments are split into base and incentive
payments as follows:
e Distributors - 55% base, 45% incentive
e J&J-45% base, 55% incentive
* All incentive payments deal with preventing future
litigation by subdivisions and incentivizing subdivision sign
on.



Offsets and Suspension of Payments

* If a subdivision who hasn’t sued decides to sue later, there is a suspension of payments
and a potential offset of those payments.

* Size of the suspension and a potential offset depend on several factors, but the
distributors’ deal applies a maximum offset in the amount of 67% against the
suspension and/or future payments.

* If that lawsuit is resolved, suspended payments resume. If the lawsuit requires
payment, the amounts held are used to offset the amount paid.



Goal: Bring the Most Money to Texas

There are a combination of approaches that Texas could take to maximize funds with the participation of
litigating subdivisions and nonlitigating subdivisions.

This can be obtained by getting releases for past and future claims from all litigating subdivisions and
special districts, all general-purpose subdivisions over 10,000 population, and covered special districts.
Texas has 128 litigating subdivisions:

* 110 Counties.

* 5 Cities.

* 10 Hospital Districts.

* 3 School Districts.
Texas has 406 general purpose subdivisions with a population of over 10,000 (309 nonlitigating and 97
litigating).

Currently, the best option for Texas to maximize incentive funds is through a partnership with political
subdivisions, where a large percentage agree to release claims.



How Settlement Dollars Flow into Texas

* By signing on to the Settlement and executing a release, you increase the funds coming into
Texas and will be entitled to a portion of the funds that Texas receives.

* Texas and Participating Subdivisions alike get direct payments under the settlement.

 Cities and Counties will also get funding for abatement programs from the Opioid Council.
e Question: If my county signs up and executes a release, how do | get dollars to my county?

* Answer: SB 1827 (87R) and the Texas Term Sheet



Texas Term Sheet and SB 1827/

* Goal of the Texas Term Sheet: Provide Texans in all 254 counties with the opportunity for
funding for education, prevention, and treatment of opioid abuse.

* SB 1827 (87R) codifies the Texas Term Sheet and establishes the Texas Opioid Council (Council)
to ensure that the funds recovered by Texas are allocated fairly and spent to remediate the
opioid crisis in Texas, using efficient and cost-effective methods that are directed to the hardest
hit regions in Texas while also ensuring that all Texans benefit from prevention and recovery
efforts.

* 85% of the funds under the Settlement will be deposited into the Opioids Abatement Trust
Fund:

* 15% to directly to subdivisions.
* 70% share to abatement programs.

10



Example Opioid Fund Allocations
These amounts are estimates only based on maximum recoveries

e Assuming (1) your
subdivision
executes a release
and signs on to
the Texas Term
Sheet, and (2)
Texas receives
maximum funds
from the
distributors and
J&J, what kind of
funding does that
mean for my
subdivision?

* Example 1 — direct payments to
cities and counties:

Distributors | __J&J | ___Total ___

Brazoria County
City of Edinburg
City of Houston
League City

City of Longview
City of McKinney
City of Odessa

City of Round Rock
Starr County

City of Waxahachie

$1,013,429.26

$119,977.07

$6,969,111.93

$300,149.11
$478,635.88
$447,004.00
$554,967.87
$472,420.87

$99,146.53
$150,952.91

$232,935.37
$27,576.57

$1,601,841.11

$68,988.87
$110,013.82
$102,743.27
$127,558.63
$108,585.31
$22,788.70
$34,696.33

$1,246,364.63

$147,553.64

$8,570,953.04

$369,137.98
$588,649.71
$549,747.27
$682,526.50
$581,006.17
$121,935.23
$185,649.24

n



Fxample Opioid Fund Allocations

These amounts are estimates only based on maximum recoveries

* Assuming (1) your * Example 2 — Abatement allocations by
subdivision Regions for Treatment Programs

executes a release
e R Rcson | Distibutos | J&) | Total |
the Texas Term Region 3 (Austin, $121,270,842.23 $27,873,941.89 $149,144,784.13

Sheet’ and (2) Calhoun, Chambers,

. Colorado, Fort Bend,
Texa_s receives Harris, Matagorda,
maximum funds Waller, Wharton)
from the
distributors and

J&J, what kind of

Region 5 (Cameron, $17,664,324.97 $4,060,121.61 $21,724,446.58
Hidalgo, Starr, Willacy)

funding does that Resion 9 (ballas, $66,659,834.77  $15,321,674 $81,981,509.18
Kaufman)

mean for my

subdivision? Region 15 (EI Paso, $18,039,679.50  $4,146,396.35  $22,186,075.85

Hudspeth) )



Opioid Lawsuits Timeline (1 of 3)

In September 2017, Attorney General Paxton and a bipartisan coalition of 40 other states
served investigative subpoenas and additional requests on eight companies that
manufacture or distribute highly addictive opioids to evaluate whether manufacturers and
distributors engaged in unlawful practices in the marketing, sale, and distribution of
opioids.

May 15, 2018, Texas filed a lawsuit against Purdue Pharma for violating state laws against
deceptive trade practices and misrepresenting the risk of addiction to patients and doctors.

On September 4, 2019, Attorney General Paxton announced that a civil Medicaid fraud
lawsuit had been filed against pharmaceutical manufacturer Johnson & Johnson for
misrepresentations made to the Texas Medicaid program about their dangerous opioid
drug, Duragesic.

Purdue Pharma files for Chapter 11 Bankruptcy in September 2019.

13



Opioid Lawsuits Timeline (2 of 3)

* In February 2020, Attorney General Paxton announced a global settlement
framework between state attorneys general, local subdivisions, and Mallinckrodt
(MKN). MKN is currently the largest generic opioid manufacturer in the United
States. In the agreement, MKN agreed to pay $1.6 billion in cash to a trust that will
cover the costs of opioid addiction treatment and related efforts, with the potential
for increased payment to the trust.

* On May 13, 2020, Attorney General Paxton reached a bipartisan agreement with
Texas Counties and Cities in preparation for settlement with opioid defendants:
McKesson, Cardinal Health, ABDC, and Johnson & Johnson. Texas is one of the lead
states currently negotiating financial settlements with the nation’s largest companies
in the opioid supply chain.

14



Opioid Lawsuits Timeline (3 of 3)

* In February 2021, Attorney General Paxton and 46 states entered into a settlement
with McKinsey, a consulting firm that assisted Purdue and others with their
marketing of prescription opioids, for $583 million and injunctive relief. The funds
are earmarked to remediate the harms caused by the opioid epidemic and to recover
the costs incurred in investigating and pursuing these claims.

* On July 23, 2021, Attorney General Paxton announced the global settlement had
been reached with opioid defendants McKesson, Cardinal Health, ABDC, and

Johnson & Johnson.

15



Next Steps

* To join the Settlement, Subdivisions need to:
* Sign on the to settlement and execute releases; and
* Execute the Texas Term Sheet.

* The deadline to sign on is approximately 120 days after the state sign-on period,
estimated January 2, 2022.

16



KEN PAXTON

ATTORNEY GENERAL of TEXAS

For more information, visit
www.texasattorneygeneral.gov/globalopioidsettlement

Questions? Email opioids@oag.texas.gov

17



RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HARKER
HEIGHTS APPROVING PARTICIPATION IN THE OPIOIDS
SETTLEMENT
WHEREAS, City of Harker Heights, Texas obtained information indicating that certain
drug companies andtheir corporate affiliates, parents, subsidiaries, and such other
defendants as may be added to the litigation (collectively, “Defendants”) have engaged
in fraudulent and/or reckless marketing and/ordistribution of opioids that have resulted

in addictions and overdoses; and

WHEREAS, these actions, conduct and misconduct have resulted in significant

financial costs to the City; and

WHEREAS, on May 13, 2020, the State of Texas, through the Office of the Attorney
General, and a negotiation group for Texas political subdivisions entered into an
Agreement entitled Texas Opioid Abatement Fund Council and Settlement Allocation
Term Sheet (hereafter, the Texas TermSheet) approving the allocation of any and all
opioid settlement funds within the State of Texas. The Texas Term Sheet is attached
hereto as Exhibit “A”; and

WHEREAS, Special Counsel and the State of Texas have recommended that the City
of Harker Heights City Council support the adoption and approval the Texas Term Sheet

in its entirety.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that we, the City Council of the City of
Harker Heights:

1. Support the adoption and approval the Texas Term Sheet in its entirety; and



2. Finds as follows:

a. There is a substantial need for repayment of opioid-related expenditures and

payment to abate opioid-related harms in and about the City of Harker Heights, Texas; and

b. The City Council supports in its entirety and hereby adopts the allocation method
for opioid settlement proceeds as set forth in the STATE OF TEXAS AND TEXAS
POLITICAL SUBDIVISIONS’ OPIOID ABATEMENT FUND COUNCIL AND
SETTLEMENT ALLOCATION TERM SHEET, attached hereto as Exhibit A. The City
Council understandsthat the purpose of this Texas Term Sheet is to permit collaboration
between the State of Texas and Political Subdivisions to explore and potentially effectuate
resolution of the Opioid Litigationagainst Pharmaceutical Supply Chain Participants as defined
therein. We also understand that an additional purpose is to create an effective means of
distributing any potential settlement funds obtained under this Texas Term Sheet between the
State of Texas and Political Subdivisions in a manner and means that would promote an effective
and meaningful use of the funds in abating the opioid epidemic in this City and throughout

Texas.

PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the City of Harker Heights,
Texas, this 26" day of October, 2021.

CITY OF HARKER HEIGHTS, TEXAS:

Spencer H. Smith, Mayor

ATTEST:

Julie Helsham, City Secretary
City of Harker Heights



	Agenda
	Consent Item IV-1
	Public Hearing Item VI-1
	Public Hearing Item VI-2
	Regular Business Item IX-1
	Regular Business Item IX-2
	Regular Business Item IX-3



